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NOTICE is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the Members of INTEGRATED 
HITECH LIMITED. will be held on Thursday the 29th September, 2022, at 10:00 AM through Video 
Conferencing (VC) for which purpose the Registered Office of the Company situated at Cisons 
Complex, 150/115, 3rd Floor, Montieth Road, Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, 600008 shall be 
deemed to be the venue for the Meeting and the proceedings of AGM shall be deemed to be made 
thereat, to transact the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTS: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION. 
 
"RESOLVED THAT the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
account of the Company (Both Standalone and Consolidated)with the Schedules and Cash Flow 
Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the Directors Report and the Auditors' 
Report thereon, be and are hereby approved and adopted." 
 
2. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION. 
 
 
"RESOLVED THAT the Auditors of the Company, M/s. John Moris & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
Chennai (Firm Registration No. 007220S) who were appointed as Statutory Auditors to hold office 
for a period of five years till the conclusion of the 32ndAnnual General Meeting on a remuneration 
as the Board of Directors of the Company may determine, in addition to travelling and out of 
pocket expenses be and is hereby ratified”. 
 
 
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
APPOINMENT OF DIRECTORS  
 
3. Regularisation of appointment of Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN: 02356484) as a director:- 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a 
SPECIAL  RESOLUTION. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 160 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification (s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN: 02356484), who was appointed as an 
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additional director of the company with effect from 19th January, 2022 by the Board of Directors 
pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and who holds office only upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company and in respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing from a member 
under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mrs. Sudha Gerald for the office of 
Director be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, whose period of 
office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”   

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable 
or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board 
 

Chennai   
         A. GERALD EBENEZER 
Date:-  02/09/ 2022       Managing Director 
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NOTES: Statutory information:  
 
1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in   respect of 

the Special Business set out in Item No.3, annexed here to 
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy or Proxies to 
attend and vote instead of himself and such Proxy or Proxies need not be a member or members 
of the Company. The Proxy form, duly signed, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.  Members who have 
exercised their vote through e-voting cannot vote at the meeting. 

  
3. A Proxy form shall be in Form No.MGT-11 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
  

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are 
requested to send to the company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf. 

 
5. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 

22nd September, 2022 to 29th September, 2022 (both days inclusive) in connection with the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and payment of dividend. 

 

6. Members are requested to intimate change, if any, in their address immediately. 
 

7. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report with them to the Annual 
General Meeting. 

 

8. Annual Report and the Notice of the AGM are available in the Company’s website: 
www.easitax.com The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting during the AGM) i.e. 
www.evotingindia.com. Facility for Remote E-voting and Voting during the meeting. 

 

9. Pursuant to Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013, and the relevant Rules, the 
Company has entered into an arrangement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) to facilitate the Members to exercise their right to vote at the Annual General Meeting 
through remote e-voting. The detailed process for participating in the said e-voting is furnished 
in Page No.5. 

 
10. A person who has participated in the remote e-voting is not debarred from participating in the 

meeting though he/she shall not be able to vote at the meeting again and his/her earlier vote 
cast electronically shall be treated as final. However, as per Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, facility for voting shall also be made available at 
the meeting and Members who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right to vote at the meeting. 

 
11. Pursuant to proviso to Regulation 40 (1) of the Listing Regulations, effective from 1st April 2019 

transfer of securities other than transmission or transposition of names are not to be processed 
by the Company in physical form. So, shareholders desirous of transferring their shares are 
requested to dematerialize their shares.  
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GUIDANCE TO SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
 
(i) The voting period begins at 9:00 AM on 26th September, 2022 and ends on 28th September, 
2022 at 5:00PM. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date viz., 22nd September,2022 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after 5 p.m. on 28th 

September, 2022. 
(ii)  For shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
(iii) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
(iv) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
(vi)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 
a) Enter the following details: 

Applicable for Shareholders holding shares in Demat form and Physical form: 
 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 
 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first 
two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence 
number in the PAN field. 

 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the 
applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two 
characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter 
RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
OR Date of 
Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 
in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv) 

 
(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
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(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to 
vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED (EVSN No. 220902086) and 
you will be directed to the e-voting screen. 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option 
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to 
the Resolution. 

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page. 

(xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID 
and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system. 

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for 
android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play 
Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store 
and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile. 

(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 
 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
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 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they 

wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same. 

(xx) SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE RTA OR DEPOSITORIES MAY USE THE WEBLINK OF THE RTA 
https://Investors.cameoindia.comAND FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN. 
In case of any difficulty please contact the RTA. Upon registration of the E-mail ID as 
above, the RTA will provide the login credentials for the e-voting when the notice of the 
AGM is sent based on this registration. 

 
General  

a) The voting period begins on 26th September, 2022 (9.00 AM) and ends on 28th September, 
2022 (5.00 PM)During this period shareholders of the company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22nd September, 2022, may 
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not 
be allowed to change it subsequently. 

b) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date is 22nd September, 2022. 

c) Mr. Rabindra Kumar Samal,Practising Company Secretary, Chennai has been appointed as 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

d) The scrutinizer shall within a period of not exceeding three working days from the 
conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses 
not in employment of the Company and make a scrutinizer's report of the votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company. 

e) The results of the e-voting along with the scrutinizer's report shall be placed in the 
Company's website www.easitax.comand on the website of CDSL within two days of 
passing of the resolution at the AGM of the Company. The results will also be 
communicated to the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 
In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at  www.evotingindia.com under help Section 
or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

By Order of the Board 
 
Chennai   
         A. GERALD EBENEZER 
Date:-  02/09/ 2022       Managing Director 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013: 
 

ITEM No. 3:   

The Special Business relates to seeking members’ approval for regularization of Appointment of 
Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN- 02356484) Who is appointed by the Board of Directors as Additional 
Director with effect from 19th January, 2022 to the conclusion of ensuing AGM. The Board of 
Directors recommends the above resolution for the share holders approval. 

The Board of Directors, on the basis of performance evaluation done by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of Sudha Gerald (DIN- 02356484) Director, considers that given her 
background and experience and contributions made by her during her tenure and the continued 
association of Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN- 02356484) would be beneficial to the company and it is 
desirable to continue to avail her service as an Non Executive Director. 

Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN-02356484), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 19th January, 2022 by the 
Board in accordance with section-161 of the companies Act, 2013(“ the Act”). As per the  Section-
161 of the Act, Mrs. Sudha Gerald holds office upto the date of the ensuing AGM on 29th 
September, 2022. The Company has received the requisite notice in writing under section 160 of the 
Act from a member proprsing the candidature of Mrs. Sudha Gerald to be appointed as a Non-
Executive Director at the ensuing AGM liable to retire by rotation.  

Mrs. Sudha Gerald possesses the requisite knowledge, experience and skill for the position of 
Director. The Board on receipt of the said notice from a member and on recommendation of it’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to approval of members in the ensuing 
AGM, has accorded its consent, to appoint Mrs. Sudha Gerald as a Non –Executive Director liable 
to retire by rotation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED 
CIN: L72300TN1993PLC024583  
 

9 
 

 

D I R E C T ORS’ R E P O RT 

Dear Members, 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the 29th Annual Report of your Company 
on the business and operations together with the Audited Financial Statements including 
Consolidated Financial Statement and Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended 31st 
March’2022.The performance of the Company during the year under Report is summarized as 
below: 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
The summarized financial results of our operations for the Financial Year ending 31st March’ 2022 
is detailed hereunder. 

    (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

Particulars March 31, 2022 
(Amt in Rs.) 

March 31, 2021 
(Amt in Rs.) 

March 31, 2022 
(Amt in Rs.) 

March 31, 2021 
(Amt in Rs.) 

Operating Income 3.37 14.45 3.37 14.45 
Other Income 6.18 4.87 6.18 4.87 
Total Income 9.55 19.32 9.55 19.32 

Total Expenditure 20.80 24.86 20.80 24.86 
Net profit/Loss 
Exceptional Items 

(11.24) (5.54) (11.24) (5.54) 

Exceptional Items 0 0.00 0 0.00 
Profit / (Loss) before tax (11.24) (5.54) (11.24) (5.54) 
Provision for tax NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Deffered tax NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Net Profit/Loss after tax (11.24) (5.54) (11.24) (5.54) 
Earnings Per Share 00.00 00.00 00.00 00.00 

 

WEB ADDRESS –www.easitax.com 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
During the year under review, your Company has registered a total loss of Rs. 11.24/- Lakhs as 
compared to previous year loss of Rs. 5.54/- Lakhs. The Board is trying hard for the growth of the 
Company. Your Directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company 
by developing new Software in the ever growing field of Financial and Health Care Sector. The 
Company is now ready to avail the new opportunities available in the market.  
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 
 
During the Financial year 2021-22 the Authorized Share Capital and Paid Up Capital as at 31st 
March 2022 stood at Rs.11,00,00,000/- and Rs.10,00,46,000/- respectively. During the year under 
review, the company has not issued any Securities nor granted any Stock Options or Sweat Equity. 
 
BUSINESS REVIEW/ STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 
Your Company is involved in the development of various software and services for E-filing of 
Corporate Statutory Tax Returns and developing the existing software’s. The company is working 
on to develop e-redressal system for GST and e-record system for health care. 
 
During the year under review, the total income of the Company stands at Rs. 9.55/- Lakhs and the 
expenses stands at Rs. 20.80/- Lakhs. The Net Loss stands at Rs. 11.24/- Lakhs in compression to 
Rs. 5.54/- Lakhs of last year. 
 
The losses can be attributed to the developmental expenses the company is incurring for 
developing the GST & Health Care Software which are to be launched in the market soon. 
 
CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS 

 
During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the company. 
 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY 
 
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES 
 
The Company's Equity shares are presently listed on BSE Limited and the Company has received in 
Principle Approval for revocation of Suspension in trading of Equity Shares on 25th February, 2019. 
The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchanges for the financial year 
2021–2022. 
 
We are in the process of revocation of the suspension but the same could not be expedited because 
of the Pandemic and we are sure to restore the listing in due course of Time. 
 
The Company is in the process of complying with the requirement of achieving 100% holding of the 
promoters in demat forms as required under the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
DIVIDEND 

As there is no profit in this year therefore the Board recommends no dividend is to be declared for 
this financial year. 
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INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY  

During the year, the Board of Directors ('the Board') reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. In 
accordance with Section-129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary, which form part of the Annual Report. 
Further, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of the subsidiary in 
the prescribed format AOC – 1 is appended as Annexure-1 to the Board's report. The statement also 
provides the details of performance, financial positions of each of the subsidiaries. 
 
In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, 
including the consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company, are 
available on our website www.easitax.com. These documents will also be available for inspection 
during business hours at our registered office. 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION 
FUND 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend 
declared and paid last year.  

BOARD’S COMPOSITION, CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR MEETINGS: 
 
The Board is collectively responsible for the sustainable success of the company. The Company’s 
Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and reflects 
diversity in terms of disciplines, professions, social groups, gender and stakeholder interest. 
 
The strength of the Board as on March 31, 2022 is Four (4) directors. They are as follows: 
 

1. A. GERALD EBENEZER   Managing Director 
2. SUDHA GERALD    Non-Executive Director 
3. J.RAJENDHIRAN    Independent Director 
4. R.A.ESWARI     Independent Director(Women) 

 

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS  

During the year under review there a changes in the composition of Board of Director of the 
Company. 
 
Mrs. Sudha Gerald (DIN-02356484), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 19th January, 2022 by the 
Board. 
 
The following are the KMP as on date:- 
 

1. A. GERALD EBENEZER   - Managing Director 
2. Ms. ShantwanaAdhikari  - CFO 
3. CS Deepak Kumar Saha  - Company Secretary 
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors met Five (5) times during this financial year, The disclosure on Board 
meetings and attendance of directors are given below: 
 

Date of meetings     No. of Directors attended the meeting 
  
30.06.2021 3 
02.09.2021 3 
15.11.2021 3 
19.01.2022 3 
10.02.2022 3 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
The details of composition of the Committees of the Board of Directors are as under:- 

a. Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee constitutes of Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN, Mrs .R.A.ESWARI, and Mrs. 
SUDHA GERALD. Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The 
Board of Directors have accepted all the recommendations given by the Audit Committee. 
The terms and reference of Audit Committee and details of meetings held during the 
financial year 2021-22 and the attendance of members are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of the Directors Report. 

 
b. Nomination, Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN, Mrs. 
R.A.ESWARI, and Mrs. SUDHA GERALD. Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN is the Chairman of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The details of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and meetings held during the financial year 2021-22 and the attendance of 
members are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the 
Directors Report. 

 
c. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN, Mrs. 
R.A.ESWARI, and Mrs. SUDHA GERALD. Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN is the Chairman of the 
Stakeholder Relationship Committee. The details of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
and meetings held during the financial year 2021-22 and the attendance of members are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Directors Report. 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
As required under Sub-Section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of Annual Return in Form 
MGT – 9 forms part of this report as Annexure – 2. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis forms an integral part of this Report and gives details of 
the overall industry structure, developments, performance and state of affairs of the company and 
other material developments during the financial year and is attached as Annexure-3. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Corporate Governance Report and a certificate by the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance 
of the conditions of corporate governance by your Company as stipulated in Regulation 34(3) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are attached to this 
Report as Annexure -4. 
 
STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All the Independent Directors have given declarations of Independence, as required pursuant to 
Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as 
provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
All the Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed 
in Scheduled IV to the Act. 
 
MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  
 
The performance of the Individual Directors on the Board and the Committees thereof is done by 
the Board and the Independent Directors in their exclusive meeting done as per the policy 
formulated by the Board in this regard. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 the performance evaluation of the 
Board and Individual Directors is done on annual basis. 
 
 
The evaluation is done by the Board, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Independent 
Directors with specific focus on the performance and effective functioning of the Board and 
Individual Directors. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company 
confirms that-  

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
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b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and 
loss of the company for that period; 

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 
 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

None of the employees of the Company has been in receipt of remuneration exceeding the amounts 
envisaged under Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from the public 
under Sections 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 your Company has formulated 
a Whistle Blower Policy as a Vigil Mechanism. This mechanism aims for conducting the affairs in a 
fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity 
and ethical behavior.  
 
This mechanism is for the employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
OUTGO: 

A. Conservation of  Energy, Technology Absorption  

The Company always believes in giving the best to its clients and in this regard it continuously 
upgrade its knowledge in cutting edge technology and in the latest and best equipments. 

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by 
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of 
unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a 
comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from 
time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk 
through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the 
Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, 
project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance. 

AUDITORS 
 
a. Statutory Auditors: 
 
M/s. John Moris & Co. (Firm Registration No. 007220S), Chartered Accountants, Chennai were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of our Company in our 27th Annual General Meeting held on 31st 
December 2020 and they hold office till the conclusion of our 32ndAnnual General Meeting on a 
remuneration as the Board of Directors of the Company may determine. 
 
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Audit Report which require any 
explanation from the Board of Directors. 
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b. Secretarial Auditor: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has 
appointed CS Rabindra Kumar Samal, Company Secretary in Whole time Practice to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2019–20, 2020-21 and 2021-22.  
 
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial year 2021-22 is attached in 
Annexure-5. 
 
REPLY TO OBSERVATION RAISED BY THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
 

 
1. The Company is in the process of complying with the requirement of achieving 100% 

holding of the promoters in demat forms as required under the SEBI (Listing obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. We are trying to regularise PAN issues of 
the Promotor /Promotor Group and shall be able to comply with the Regulation. 

 
FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS 
 
No Frauds were reported by the Auditors either to the Audit Committee or in their reports during 
the year under review. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
 
The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the year since the 
Company is not falling under the category of class Companies as prescribed under Sub-section (1) 
of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules framed there under. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. 
During the year under review, no case of sexual harassment was reported. 

During the year under review, the Internal Complaints Committee , which has been in existence in 
the company to receive and deal in with complaints relating to such harassment , has not received 
any complaint pertaining to sexual harassment. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, 
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS. 

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and Company’s operations in future  
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          Annexure-1 
 

Annexure – 1 to the Directors Report 

[Pursuanttofirstprovisotosub-section(3)ofSection129readwithRule–
5ofCompanies(Accounts)Rules,2014] 

 [Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 
subsidiaries/associatecompanies/jointventures] 

Part “A” Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

As no commercial activity has commenced at both the subsidiary in singapore and USA, the financial 
information relating to the subsidiaries are not furnished and consolidated financial information is also 
not furnished. 

Sl.No. Particulars Details 
1. Name of the Subsidiary 1. Integrated 

HitechSingapore Pte 
Ltd, 

2. Integrated 
Hitech(America)Corpor
ation 

2. The date since which subsidiary has been acquired 
1. Integrated Hitech Singapore Pte Ltd 
2. Integrated Hitech (America)Corporation 
 

 
14/04/2001 
16/03/2001 

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period 

 
N.A. 

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

 
 

5. Share Capital  
6. Reserve & Surplus  
7. Total Assets  
8. Total Liabilities  
9. Investments  
10. Turnover  
11. Profit before taxation  
12 Provision for taxation  
13. Profit after taxation  
14. Proposed dividend  
15. % of Shareholding  

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement 
1. Names of the subsidiaries, which are yet to commence operations: 2(Two) 
2. Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:NIL 
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PART “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures: 

The Company does not have any associate ecompanies and Joint Ventures. Hence the information 
required under this head is not being furnished. 

For and on behalf of the Board 
M/s. Integrated Hitech Ltd.  

 
Date: 02/09/2022      
       (Director)                 (Director) 
Place: Chennai 
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FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 
arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. NIL 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
NA 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA 
c)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
NA 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

f)  Date of approval by the Board NA 
g)  Amount paid as advances, if any NA 
h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed 

in General meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188 

NA 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. NIL 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
NA 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA 
c)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
NA 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

e)  Date of approval by the Board NA 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

For and on behalf of the Board 
M/s. Integrated Hitech Ltd.  

 
Date: 02/09/2022      
Place: Chennai                              (Director)                 (Director) 
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Annexure-2 

 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 

of 

INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED  

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013  

And 

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

i) CIN: L72300TN1993PLC024583 
ii) Registration Date: 11/03/1993 
iii) Name of the Company: INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED 
iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by Share/ Indian Non-Government 

Company 
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details: 150/115,Cisons Complex,3rdFloor,Moniteth 

      Road Egmore Chennai- 600008 

vi) Whether listed company: YES 
vii) Name and Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ), if any:  

 

M/s Cameo Corporate Services Limited,  
SUBRAMANIAN BUILDING  
No:1, Club House Road, Chennai-600 002 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the 
total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

SN Name and Description of main products 
/ services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/service 

%  to total turnover 
of the company 

1 Other Information Technology And 
Computer Service Activities 

62099 100% 
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II. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES [No. of Companies for which 
information is being filled] : Two 

III.  

S. 
N0 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE 
COMPANY 

CIN/GLN 
HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY / 
ASSOCIATE 

1 Integrated Hitech 
(America)Corporation 
Address:- 8011, Bren Dina 
Court, Murrysville, PA 
15668. 

 Subsidiary 

2 Integrated Hitech Singapore 
Pte Ltd 
Address:- Cantonment 
Road, Singapore, 089747 

 Subsidiary 

 

IV.SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 1st April 2021] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As 
on 31st March 2022] 

% 
Chan

ge 
durin

g 
the 
year    

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters                   

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/HUF 0 11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 0 11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 0 

b) Central Govt - - - - -  - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp. - - - - -  - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Total 
shareholding of 0 

11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 0 11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 

0 
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Promoter (A1) 

 (2) Foreign          

Individuals (non-
Resident 
individuals/Forei
gn individuals) - - - - - - - - - 

Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - - 

Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

Qualified Foreign 
Investor - - - - - - - - - 

Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub - Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Share 
Holding of 
Promoter and 
Promoter Group 
(A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 0 

11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 0 11,05,700 11,05,700 11.05 

0 

B. Public 
shareholding          

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

A) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

B) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

C) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

D) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

E) Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - 
- 

- - 
- - 

F) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - 
- 

- - 
- - 
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G) fiis - - - - - - - - - 

 H) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - 

- 

- - 

- - 

I) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

           

2. Non-
Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. 

673247 467300 1140547 11.40 

673247 

467100 1140347 

11.40 

-
0.00
19 

b) Individuals          

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 lakh 

2985545 1586208 4571753 45.70 

2972748 

1586408 4559156 

45.70 

-
0.12
59 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

1495052 1048200 2543252 25.42 

1510052 

1048200 2558252 

25.57 0.15 

Qualified Foreign 
Investor 

- - - - 
- 

- - 
- - 

c) Others 
(specify) 

    
 

  
  

Hindu Undivided 
Families 

603729 0 603729 6.03 

602979 

0 602979 

6.03 

-
0.00
74 

Non Resident 
39619 0 39619 0.40 38166 0 38166 0.38 -

0.01
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Indians 45 

Sub-total (B)(2):- 5797192 3101708 8898900 88.95 5797192 3101708 8898900 88.95 0.00 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

5797192 3101708 8898900 88.95 

5797192 

3101708 8898900 

88.95 0.00 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - - - 

- 

- - 

- - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

 

 5797192 

4207408 10004600 100.00 5797192 4207408 10004600 100.00 

0.00 

 

ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

SN Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year April , 2021 

Share holding at the end of the year 
March 31, 2022 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during 
the year 

  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

1 A.GERALD 
EBENEZER 5,55,800 5.56 0 5,55,800 5.56 0 

 

2 

A.RENALD ABEL 2,46,300 

2.46 

 0 2,46,300 

2.46 

 0 

 

3 JULIET ABEL 90,500 0.90 0 90,500 0.90 0  

4 J.V.MARDIA 65,900 0.66  65,900 0.66   

5 V.RADHA 
MOHAN 47,800 0.48  47,800 0.48  

 

6 T.PRABHAKAR 34,200 0.34  34,200 0.34   



INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED 
CIN: L72300TN1993PLC024583  
 

26 
 

7 CHANDRASEKAR 24,800 0.25  24,800 0.25   

8 MURUGAN M. 10,000 0.10  10,000 0.10   

9 RAJKUMAR 9,900 0.10  9,900 0.10   

10 DENIEL 
SELVARAJ 7,400 0.07  7,400 0.07  

 

11 PALANI KUMAR 6,100 0.06  6,100 0.06   

12 SUDHA GERALD 4,400 0.04  4,400 0.04   

13 GELL GEORGE 1,300 0.01  1,300 0.01   

14 SURESH J. 1,300 0.01  1,300 0.01   

 TOTAL 11,05,700 11.05  11,05,700 11.05   

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): During Financial Year 2021-22 
followings changes were made in the Promoters Shareholding are given below:- 

SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1. A.GERALD EBENEZER 

 i)  At the beginning of the year 555800 5.5554 555800 5.5554 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 555800 5.5554 555800 5.5554 

2. A.RENALD ABEL 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 246300 2.4618 246300 2.4618 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 246300 2.4618 246300 2.4618 
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3. JULIET ABEL 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 90500 0.9045 90500 0.9045 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 90500 0.9045 90500 0.9045 

4. J.V.MARDIA 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 65900 0.6586 65900 0.6586 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 65900 0.6586 65900 0.6586 

5. V.RADHA MOHAN 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 47800 0.4777 47800 0.4777 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 47800 0.4777 47800 0.4777 

6. T.PRABHAKAR 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 34200 0.3418 34200 0.3418 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 34200 0.3418 34200 0.3418 

7. CHANDRASEKAR 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 24800 0.2478 24800 0.2478 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 24800 0.2478 24800 0.2478 

8. MURUGAN M. 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 10000 0.0999 10000 0.0999 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year  10000 0.0999 10000 0.0999 
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9. RAJKUMAR 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 9900 0.0989 9900 0.0989 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 9900 0.0989 9900 0.0989 

10. DENIEL SELVARAJ 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 7400 0.0739 7400 0.0739 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 7400 0.0739 7400 0.0739 

11. PALANI KUMAR 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 6100 0.0609 6100 0.0609 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 6100 0.0609 6100 0.0609 

12. SUDHA GERALD 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 4400 0.0439 4400 0.0439 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 4400 0.0439 4400 0.0439 

13. GELL GEORGE 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 1300 0.0129 1300 0.0129 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 1300 0.0129 1300 0.0129 

14. SURESH J. 
 i)  At the beginning of the year 1300 0.0129 1300 0.0129 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year 1300 0.0129 1300 0.0129 
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iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  

     (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):  

SN For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 

of the year 

April 1, 2021 

Cumulative Shareholding 
at end of the Year March 
31,2022 

No. of 
shares 

% of total  
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

1 RAM GOPAL RAMGARHIA HUF 503513 5.03 503513 5.03 

2 SAIANAND COMMERCIAL LIMITED 460000 4.60 460000 4.60 

3 CHIDAMBARAM M 450000 4.50 450000 4.50 

4 MARDIA SONS HOLDINGS P LTD 421000 4.21 421000 4.21 

5 SHANMUGANATHANI 250000 2.50 250000 2.50 

6 BHARAT KUMAR MARDIA 150000 1.50 150000 1.50 

7 JASHMIN BABULAL SHUKLA 148450 1.48 148450 1.48 

8 SHAKUNTALA SHUKLA 117900 1.18 117900 1.18 

9 SUJIT RANJAN MAITY 177054 1.76 177054 1.76 

10 NAVEEN KUMAR SHUKLA 110249 1.10 110249 1.10 

 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 
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F) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment 

  

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits 
Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 

  
  

   

i) Principal Amount - - - - 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due  - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii)  - - - - 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

  
  

   

* Addition  - - - - 

* Reduction  - - - - 

Net Change  - - - - 

1. A.GERALD EBENEZER 

 i)  At the beginning of the year April 1, 
2021 5,55,800 5.56 5,55,800 5.56 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year March 31, 
2022 5,55,800 5.56 5,55,800 5.56 

2. SUDHA GERALD 
 

 

 

i) At the beginning of the year April 
1, 2021 

4,400 0.04 4,400 0.04 

ii) Increase/Decrease  in shareholding 
during  the year 

- - - - 

iii) At the end of the year March 31, 
2022 4,400 0.04 4,400 0.04 
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Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year 

  
  

   

i) Principal Amount  - - - - 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due        - - -       - 

Total (i+ii+iii)  - - - - 

 

XI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: Managing Director 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount 

  A.Gerald Ebenezer    60,000.00 

1 Gross salary   - 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

- - 

2 Stock Option - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - 

4 Commission 
-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify… 

- - 

5 Others, please specify - - 
  Total (A) - 60,000.00 
  Ceiling as per the Act - - 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: Three 

      

 

Sl.No. 

 

Particulars of Remuneration 
 

Sitting Fees 
for 
attending 
board/ 
committee 
meetings 
 

Commission 
 

Others, 
please 
specify 
 

Total 
Amount 

1 Independent Directors 

1. Mr.J.Rahendhiran 
2. R.A.Eswari 

 
48000 
24000 
 
 
 

0 
0 
 
 

 
0 
0 

48000 
24000 
 
 

Total (1)  72000 - -  72000 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors  6000 0 0  6000 

Fee for attending board committee meetings  - - -  0 

Commission  - - -  - 

Others, please specify  - - -  - 

  Total (2)  - - -  - 

  Total (B)=(1+2)  78000 - -  78000 

  
Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

 - 
- 

- 
 - 

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act  - - -  - 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD- TWO 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    CEO CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary  - 420000.00 480000.00 900000.00 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

 - 
- 

- - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)  - - - - 
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Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

 - 
- 

- - 

2 Stock Option  - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity  - - - - 

4 Commission  - - - - 

  -  as % of profit  - - - - 

  others, specify…  - - - - 

5 Others, please specify  - - - - 

  Total  - 420000.00 480000.00 900000.00 

XII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 
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Annexure-3 

 
MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION REPORT 

 
 

Your Company is in the process of development and service of various tax compliance software 
such as e-filing of Income Tax Returns Software for individuals and corporate bodies, e-filing of Tax 
Deducted at Source (e-TDS) software for corporate and also in the process of developing GST 
Software for filing and management of GST for both Individual and Corporate. The company is in 
the process of development of Hospital Management Software (HMS) and Cloud Resource 
Management (CRM).  
 
The Hospital Management software has wide application in the health care Industry for day to day 
operation, management data storage and retrieval which would make the patient care delivery 
system a seamless one. The transition would be to a smooth, efficient and paperless environment 
with ultimate result in patient satisfaction.  

Infect our e-TDS software is being used in some of the Banks in India and most likely once the 
software reaches its final stage, would find application in other Banks/FI’s. 

Risk and Risk Mitigations: 

In Growing dynamics business situation, new entrants into the market and competition will 
continue to exert pricing pressure undermining industry profitability. Strategic positioning and 
generating higher level of economic value by continuing to build IP and offer value added services 
around verticals and add-on’s is mandatory. 
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Annexure-4 

 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance and believes in conducting 
business lawfully, with integrity and in an ethical manner. The Company is determined to provide 
in time, correct and complete information, as required, to all its stakeholders. The Company 
regularly interacts with all the stakeholders The Company firmly believes that good Corporate 
Governance can be achieved by promoting corporate fairness, transparency and accountability. To 
achieve Corporate Governance of the highest standards, the Company has adopted a comprehensive 
Corporate Governance policy.  
 
Integrated Hitech Limited  is in compliance with the Corporate Governance guidelines as stipulated 
under the Corporate Governance Policy and various clauses of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). A report on this is detailed below. 
 
2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board, as defined in the Corporate Governance principles of Integrated Hitech Limited , has 
the responsibility of ensuring concord among shareholders’ expectations, the Company’s plans and 
the management’s performance. The Board is also responsible for developing and approving the 
mission of the Company’s business, its objectives and goals and the strategy for achieving these. In 
terms of Company’s Corporate Governance policy, all statutory and other significant and material 
information are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic 
supervision of the Company as trustees of the shareholders. 
 
COMPOSITION 
 
Your Company has a balance Board, comprising 1 executives and 3 non-executive directors. The 
non-executive directors include independent professionals.  
 
Name of the 
Director 

DIN Status, i.e. 
Executive, Non-
Executive and 
Independent  

Members in 
the Board 
of other 
public 
Companies 

No. of membership 
/chairmanship of Board 
Committees of other 
Companies including 
this company 
As a 
Chairman 
 

As a 
Member 
 

Mr. A. GERALD 
EBENEZER 02026613 Executive 

 
None 
 

 
None 
 

None 
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MRS. SUDHA 
GERALD 02356484 Non-Executive None None 2 

Mr. 
J.RAJENDHIRA
N 

01784664 Independent 
 

 
1 
 

2 
 

4 
 

Mrs 
.R.A.ESWARI 05345622 Independent 

 
1 
 

 
None 
 

4 
 

 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2022, 5 Board Meeting were held, which are as follows 
 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Date Board strength No. of Directors present 

1 30.06.2021 03 03 
2 02.09.2021 03 03 
3 15.11.2021 03 03 
4 19.01.2022 03 03 
5 10.02.2022 04 03 
 
Attendance at Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting during the financial year 
 
Director No. of Board Meetings 

attended 
Attendance at last AGM 

Mr. A. GERALD EBENEZER 05 Yes 

Mr. J.RAJENDHIRAN 05 Yes 

Mrs .R.A.ESWARI 05 Yes 

MRS. SUDHA GERALD 01 NO 

 
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of reference: 
 
The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are to interact with the internal and Statutory 
Auditors, overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and review with the management 
the annual financial statements before submitting to the Board and includes: 
 

1. Appointment and fixation of remuneration payable to Auditors; 
2. Review Quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results before submission to the Board; 
3. Review accounting policies followed by the Company; 
4. The adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and procedures in the Company. 
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COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member Chairman/member 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN Chairman 
2 R.A.ESWARI Member 
3 SUDHA GERALD Member 

 
MEETING AND ATTENDANCE 
 
DETAILS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2022, four(04) meetings of Audit Committee were held, 
which are as follows 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Date Committee strength No. of members present 

1 30.06.2021 03 03 
2 02.09.2021 03 03 
3 15.11.2021 03 03 
4 10.02.2022 03 03 

 
 
ATTENDANCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member No. of Meetings attended 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN 04 
2 R.A.ESWARI 04 
3 A. GERALD EBENEZER 03 
4 SUDHA GERALD 01 

 
 
4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has a “Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.” The Committee is governed through Nomination & Remuneration 
Policy of the Company. The brief terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the 
following:  
 

 Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees; 
 

 Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent 
Directors based on certain laid down criteria; 
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 Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and to other 

Senior Management positions; 
 

 Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their 
remuneration; 
 

 Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees 
based on certain criteria as approved by the Board. 

 

COMPOSITION OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of the following members: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member Chairman/member 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN Chairman 

2 R.A.ESWARI Member 

3 SUDHA GERALD  Member 

 
DETAILS OF NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING DURING THE 
YEAR: 
  
During the financial year ended 31st March 2022, Four (4) meetings of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee were held, which are as follows: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Date Committee strength No. of members present 

1 30.06.2021 03 03 
2 02.09.2021 03 03 
3 15.11.2021 03 03 
4 10.02.2022 03 03 

 
 
ATTENDANCE OF COMMITTEE MEETING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member No. of Meetings attended 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN 04 
2 R.A.ESWARI 04 
3 A. GERALD EBENEZER 03 
4 SUDHA GERALD 01 
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REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS: 
 
Non-Executive directors are remunerated by way of sitting fees only. The Company pays 
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances to the Executive Directors within the 
limits approved by the members and as permitted under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.   
 
MANNER OF BOARD EVALUATIONS: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 27 of SEBI(LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking 
into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’ 
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, 
execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. 
 
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including 
the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and 
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority 
shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the 
entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluation process. 
 
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  
 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met time to time whenever requires to approve share 
transfers, transmissions, issue of duplicate share certificates, re-materialization of shares and all 
other issues pertaining to shares and also to redress investor grievances like non receipt of dividend 
warrants, non-receipt of share certificates, etc. The committee regularly reviews the movement in 
shareholding and ownership structure. The committee also reviews the performance of the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 
 
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE: 
  
THE COMMITTEE CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member Chairman/member 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN Chairman 
2 R.A.ESWARI Member 
3 SUDHA GERALD Member 
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During the financial year ended 31st March 2022, Four (4) meetings of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were held, which are as follows: 
 
Sl. 
No. 

Date Committee strength No. of members present 

1 30.06.2021 03 03 
2 02.09.2021 03 03 
3 15.11.2021 03 03 
4 10.02.2022 03 03 

 
ATTENDANCE OF COMMITTEE MEETING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member No. of Meetings attended 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN 04 
2 R.A.ESWARI 04 
3 A. GERALD EBENEZER 03 
4 SUDHA GERALD 01 

 
The followings are details about the grievances that solved/to be solved by the committee. 
 
Total number of Complaints received during the year   :    Nil 
Number of Complaints solved      :    Nil 
Number of complaints remaining unattended as on 31.03.2022  :    Nil 
Number of pending share transfer as on 31.03.2022    :    Nil 
Number of pending demat cases as on 31.03.2022    :    Nil 
 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Risk Assessment and minimization procedures have been framed by the Company named as “Risk 
Management Charter” and are reviewed by the Committee from time to time. The Committee has 
overall responsibility for monitoring and approving the risk policies and associated practices of the 
Company. The Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee are as follows: 
 

 Annually review and approve the Risk Management Policy and associated frameworks, 
processes and practices of the company. 
 

 Ensure that the company is taking the appropriate measures to achieve prudent balance 
between risk and reward in both ongoing and new business activities. 

 
 Evaluate significant risk exposures of the company and access management’s actions to 

mitigate the exposures in a timely manner. 
 

 Co-ordinate its activities with Audit Committee in stances where there is any overlap 
with Audit activities 
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Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks trends, exposure, potential 
impact analysis and mitigation plan. 

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as at March 31, 2022 are as under: The 
Committee meets from time to time. 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Member Chairman/member 

1 J.RAJENDHIRAN Chairman 
2 R.A.ESWARI Member 
3 SUDHA GERALD Member 

 
7. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING: 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors Meeting was held on 11th February , 2022, 
wherein all two Independent Directors were present and Mr. J. Rajendhiran appointed as Chairman 
for the Meeting. Meeting was convened inter alia, to discuss: 
 
1. Review of the performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 

2. Review of the performance of the Chairperson of the Company. 

3. Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the 
Company’s management and the Board. 

 
8. FINANCIAL CALENDER TENTATIVE 

 (Compliance of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR)Regulation,2015 
 

Period ended Financial Reporting 
On or before 

30th June, 2022 
30th September, 2022 
30th  December, 2022 
31st March, 2023 

14th August, 2022 
14th November, 2022 
14th February, 2023 
30th May, 2023 

 

9. General Body Meetings 

Date, location and time where our Annual General Meetings (AGM) has been held: 
 
 
Annual 
General 
Meeting 

Date of Annual 
General Meeting 

Location Time 

26th 27th September, 2019 
150/115, Cisons Complex, Third 
Floor, Montieth Road, Egmore, 
Chennai-700008 

10.30 A.M. 
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27th 31st December, 2020 
150/115, Cisons Complex, Third 
Floor, Montieth Road, Egmore, 
Chennai-700008 

11.00 A.M. 

28th  30th September, 2021 
150/115, Cisons Complex, Third 
Floor, Montieth Road, Egmore, 
Chennai-700008 

10.00 A.M. 

 
 
10. DISCLOSURES 

Materially significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict with the interests 
of the Company at large:  None 
 
(Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions. The committee reviewed 
and approved transactions of the Company with related parties and recommended the Board for 
approval as and when necessary. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in 
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.) 
 
•Details of non-compliances, penalties, and strictures by stock exchange/ SEBI/Statutory 
Authorities on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last year:  NIL 

 
•Pecuniary relationships or transaction with Non-Executive Directors:  None 
 
•The Company has a vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy in line with Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) 2015. The Board is hereby affirmed that no personnel have been denied access to the 
audit committee.  
 
11. IHL CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Integrated Hitech Limited (IHL) Code of conduct, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is 
applicable to all directors and senior management of the Company. This code is derived from three 
interlinked fundamental principles, i.e. good corporate governance, good corporate citizenship and 
exemplary personal conduct. The written code of conduct can be viewed from the company’s 
website. As provided under the listing regulations with the stock exchanges, the Chairman of the 
company had given a declaration on behalf of the Board and senior management for affirmation of 
compliance with the code of conduct for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
12. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:  
 
• Quarterly Results                                            : Quarterly results are approved and taken on 

record by the Board of Directors of the 
Company within 45 days of the close of the 
relevant quarter and approved results are 
forthwith sent to the Stock Exchange where the 
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Company’s shares are listed. The results are 
published in the proforma prescribed, in widely 
circulated newspapers both English and 
vernacular. These results are simultaneously 
posted on the Company’s website. 

 
• Which newspapers normally published in : Trinity Mirror – English newspaper 

Makkal Kural– Tamil Newspaper 
 

• Any Website where displayed          : Yes, www.easitax.com 
 
• Whether presentation made to  
  Institutional Investors or to analysts         : NA. 
 
• Whether Management Discussion and      : Yes, it is a part of this Year’s Annual Report. 
  Analysis Report is a part of Annual                
  Report or not                                              

 
13. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 
29th Annual General Meeting: 
  
Date    : 29/09/2022 

Time    : 10.00 A.M.  

Venue    : 150/115,Cisons Complex, Third Floor,  

Montieth Road, Egmore, Chennai-700008 

14. BOOK CLOSURE 

The Register of members and share transfer book of the company shall remain closed from 
September 22, 2022 to September 29, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General 
Meeting and Dividend 
 
15. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:  
 
Name of the stock 
Exchange 

Address Scrip Code /Stock symbol 

Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 001 

532303  

 
 
16. ISIN NO. FOR THE COMPANY’S EQUITY SHARES IN DEMAT FORM:  

ISIN NO.:- INE934A01012  
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17. DEPOSITORY CONNECTIVITY   :NSDL& CDSL 
 
18. STOCK MARKET DATA: 
 
The high and low prices of shares during the year:2021-2022. High and Low Data not furnished as the listing of 
your Company is under suspension by The Bombay Stock Exchange. However, the Company had received 
the in-principle approval for revocation of suspension in trading of Equity Share on 25th Feb,2019. 
 
The monthly high and low quotations at the BSE during each month in the last financial year are 
provided as follows: 
 
Last 52 week(High) 0 
Last 52 week(Low) 0 

 
* Market price per share is of face value of Rs.10/- each 
 
19. REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT (RTA):  

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd. 
Subramaniam Building No.1, 
Club House Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu– 600 002. 
Ph No. 044 - 28460390/91/92/93/94/95 
Contact Person –Mr.Murali -murali@cameoindia.com 

 
20. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 

The Share transfers are presently being registered within a period of 15 days from the date of 
receipt of documents that are complete in all respects. Share transfers and registration are approved 
by the stakeholder Relationship/Grievances Committee and/or the Board. The transfers of shares 
are mostly in electronic form, Transfer and registration are confirmed to depositories on receipt of 
demat request within 21 days. 
 
21. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2022: 
 
(a) According to category of holding: 
 

  

Category 
No. of 
Share 

Holders 

No. of 
shares 
Held 

Percentage 
of Share 
Holding 

A Promoter And Promoters Holding 
          a. Individuals 14 1105700 11.05 

       b. Central Government and State Government 0     
       c. Bodies Corporate 0     
       d. Foreign Promoters 0     

  
Total Share Holding of Promoter And Promoters 
Group 14 1105700 11.05 
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B Public Share Holding       
  1.   INSTITUTIONS       
         a. Mutual Funds 0     
         b. Venture Capital Funds 0     
         c. Alternative Investment Funds 0     
        d. Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0     
        e. Foreign Portfolio Investors 0     
        f. Financial Institutions / banks 0     
        g. Insurance Companies 0     
        h. Provident Funds / Pension Funds 0     
        i. Any other 0     
             Central Government / State Government (s) 0     
        j. Market Maker 0     
                 SUBTOTAL (B) (1) 0     

  
2.    Central Government / State Government 
President of India 0 0 0 

  3.     NON INSTITUTIONS       
     a. INDIVIDUALS       

  
          I. Individual Share holders holding Nominal Share 
Capital up to Rs.2.00 Lakhs 20709 5011717 50.09 

  
          II. Individual Share holders holding Nominal 
Share Capital in excess of Rs.2.00 Lakhs 24 2105691 21.05 

     b. NBFCs Registered with RBI       
     c. EMPLOYEE TRUSTS       

  
   d. Overseas Depositories (holding DRs) (balancing 
figure)       

     e. ANY OTHER       
             Bodies Corporates 108 1140347 11.4 
             Clearing Members       
             Foreign Nationals       
             Hindu Undivided Families 209 602979 6.03 
             Non Resident Indians -non-Repat 18 20015 0.20 
            Non Resident Indians-Repat 7 18151 0.18 
           Trust 0     
             SUBTOTAL (B) (3) 21075 8898900 88.95 
            TOTAL = B(1)+B(2)+B(3) 21075 8898900 88.95 
  GRAND TOTAL 21089 10004600 100 

 
22. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:  

57,97,192 no’s of equity shares have been dematerialized as on 31.03.2022. 
 
 
 



INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED 
CIN: L72300TN1993PLC024583  
 

46 
 

 
23. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 

INTEGRATED HITECH LIMITED 

Cisons Complex, 150/115, 3rd Floor,  
Montieth Road, Egmore, Chennai,  
Tamil Nadu, 600008 
Tel. No. 044-28514406 / 28514407 
Fax No. 044-28586599 
E-mail: easitax.ihl@gmail.com; integrated@eth.net 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: Chennai     A. GERALD EBENEZER 

Date:  02/09/ 2022                               Managing Director                          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
To the Members of 
Integrated Hitech Limited 
 
1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement. 
2. We, A. John Moris & Co. Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Integrated Hitech 

Limited(“the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March, 2022, as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V to 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing 
Regulations”).  

 
Management’s Responsibility  
3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 

This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
stipulated in the Listing Regulations.  

 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
4. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 

by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

5. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained 
by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with 
Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.  

6. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and 
as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI 
which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the 
ICAI.  

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality 
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical 
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.  

 
Opinion  
8. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and 

explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V to 
the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2022.  

9. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
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Company. 
 
For  A. John Moris & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 007220S 
 
 
 
CA J Sebastin 

Partner 
(Membership No. 218962 
Date: 29/08/2022 
UDIN: 22218962AQFMOG4419 

 
 
 
 

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT AS ENVISAGED UNDER SEBI (LODR), 2015 
 

To 
The Members 
Integrated Hitech Limited 
 
I, A. Gerald Ebenezer, Managing Director of M/s. Integrated Hitech Limited hereby declare that to 
the best of my knowledge and information, all the Board Members and the Senior Management 
Personnel have complied all the compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended March 31, 
2022. 
 
Place: Chennai      A. GERALD EBENEZER 
Date: 02/09/2022      Managing Director 
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MD AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
 
To 
The Board Of Directors 
Integrated Hitech Ltd 
 
We, Managing Director & CFO responsible for the finance function, certify that: 
 
a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st 

March 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year ended 31st March 2022 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of 
conduct. 

 
c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems pertaining to 
financial reporting. Deficiency in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 
which We are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps 
have been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
d) i. There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during 

the year under reference; 

ii. There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring 
disclosure in the notes of the financial statements; and 

 
iii. We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement 

therein of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

Place: Chennai A. GERALD EBENEZER  SHANTWANA ADHIKARI 

Date: 02/09/2022 Managing Director              Chief Financial Officer 
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Annexure-5 

FORM NO. MR.3                    

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2022 
(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 
To 
The Members  
Integrated Hitech Limited 
150/115, Cisons Complex 
3rd Floor, Moniteth Road 
Egmore, Chennai- 600008 
 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices byM/s. Integrated Hitech 
Limited(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing ouropinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the 
representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due 
to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 
2022, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 
ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
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External Commercial borrowings 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations,2011 and amendments from time to time; 

 

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations,2015 and amendments from time to time; 

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; 

 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations,2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
audit period) 

 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
withclient;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009;and(Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period) 

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

 

(vi) In our opinion and as identified as informed by the management, the Company 
hasadequate systems to monitor and ensure compliance (including the process of 
renewal /fresh/pending applications with government authorities), the following 
laws are specifically applicable to the company.  
 

1. The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder. 
2. Software Technology Parks of India rules and regulations. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries ofIndia. 
 
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read 

with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to 
time. 
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the 
following observations: 

 
1. The Company has not complied with the 100% promoters holding in the demat 

form. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act 
 
Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other 
than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision was carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the Audit period no events have occurred, which has 
major bearing on the Company’s affairs. 

Place: Chennai 

Date: 01.09.2022 

Rabindra Kumar Samal 

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:7649 CP No.: 18278 

UDIN- F007649D000892720  

 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A 
and Forms an integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE – A 

To 
The Members  
Integrated Hitech Limited 
150/115, Cisons Complex 
3rd Floor, Moniteth Road 
Egmore, Chennai- 600008 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of statutory and other records are the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these 
records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and 
books of Accounts of the Company. We have relied on the report of the Statutory 
Auditor in respect of the same as per the guidance of the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Company is following a system of obtaining reports from various departments to 
ensure compliance with applicable laws. 

6. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the managementhas 
conducted the affairs of the company 

Place: Chennai 

Date: 01.09.2022 

Rabindra Kumar Samal 

Practicing Company Secretary 
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FCS No.:7649 CP No.: 18278 

 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION  
OF DIRECTORS 

 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To 
The Members  
Integrated Hitech Limited 
150/115, Cisons Complex 
3rd Floor, Moniteth Road 
Egmore, Chennai- 600008 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 
the DirectorsofM/s. Integrated Hitech LimitedhavingCIN: L72300TN1993PLC024583and 
having Registered officeat150/115, Cisons Complex, 3rdFloor, Moniteth Road, Egmore, 
Chennai- 600008(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to meby the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs,or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company * 

1 Rajendhiran Jayaram 01784664 18.09.2009 

2 Ebenezer Gerald 02026613 12.10.1995 
3 RajendhiranEswariAngali 05345622 15.06.2015 
4 Sudha Gerald 02356484 19.01.2022 
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*The date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal. 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of theCompany. 

 

 

Place: Chennai 

Date: 01.09.2022 

Rabindra Kumar Samal 

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:7649 CP No.: 18278 

UDIN- F007649D000892731  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

'fo the Members of Integrated Hitech Limited

Iieport orr the AudiL of the Standalone Financial Statcnrcnts

Opinion

We have audited the accornpanying standalone financial statements of integrated Hitech

i-imited ("the. Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3f i, 2022 and the

stettement of Profit and Loss and tl-re cash flows Statement for the year then ended and notes

to the financial statements inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies. In our

opir-rion and to the best of our irformation and according to the explanations given to us the

aforesaid fiuancial staternents give the information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in hrdia of their state. of affairs of the Company as at March 31,"t,2022, and loss and

its cash flows for the vear then ended.

Ilasis for 0pinion

We conductc'd our audit in accordance rvith the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies act 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standard.s are

further described ir-r the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audir of the Financial Staternerrts

section of ou:: report. We are independent of the Companl, in accordance r,tith the Code of

Ethics issued b1, ICAI and we have fulfilIed our othc.r: ethical responsibilities in accordance

rvith the prqvisions of the Companies Act 2013. We believe that the audit evidence lve have

obtainecl is srifficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion"

I(cy Audit Matters

I(e;i auci1i matters are those matters that in our professional judgment r,vere of

significance in our audit of the financial statements of t1-re current perioci. These matters

aciclressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whoie ancl in
our: opinion thereon and rve do not provide a separate opinion on these matters No

matters u,ere id.entified duling the course of our audit.

Nr:,5. l".akshmipuraln lsiStreei. Deivasigar:ari RoarJi N*ar l,llsicAcacienry). Rcyapettah, Cnennar - 6Lr{i il14.Iei 
; +91-44-38'11 6t]03-4 r 1567nlrig35 Fax :C4,1-.?8'11 1?l;l [-rx;]ii . info@ajohnrnoi-is.i:cm. !tuebsitr:r : wwwair:hnrrcii$ i-r,,],

Branches : Ahmedabadl Sengalr.rrul Bhubaneswarl Chhattisgarhl Coinrbatsrei Gunturi t-{yderabad/
Kacl:il Kolkatal Kumbakonanrl Luck*oiul Madurail Munibaii Nagercoill Nagpurl New Delhil Ranchil Silratr'

Thirlrvananihanuraml Thrissur/ Tirunelvel!l Tirunatturj Tirunpur/ Triclrv/ Tuticorin and Visakhapatnarn
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l{esponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Ihe Cornpany's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these

financiai statements in terrn of the requirements of tl-re Comparries Act 2013 that give a true

and fair vier.r. of the financial position, firrancial performance and cash flows of the Cornpany

in accordauce i,r,itlr the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia including the

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of

Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance r,r,ith the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Companv and

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent and the design implementation and maintenance of adequate internai financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensurjng accuracy and completeness of the

accolttrting records relerrant to t]re preparatibn and presentation of the financial statements

that give a true and fair vier,rr and are free from material misstatement whether due to frauc-l

or errol: n,hich have bei:n tlsecl for the purpose of preparation of the financial statements bv

the Directols of the Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the financial statements the respectirze Board of Directors of the cornpanies art:

r:esponsible for assessiug the ability of the Compaly lo continue as a going corlcem disclosing

.rs trpplicable rnatters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liqi-ridate the Company or to cease operations or has no

lealistic aiternative but to do so.

1'he respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Company is responsible

for overseeing the financiai reporting process of the Company"

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurarlce about urhethel the financial staternents as a

tt'hole ale free lrom material misstatement whether due to fraud or error and to issue an

duditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accorclance with SAS l,r,ill aln,ays cletect a

nraterial misstatement when it exists" Misstatements can arise from fraud or en:or and are

considereci tnaterial if indiviclualll, or in the aggregate thev coulcl reasonably be expected to

irtilr-rence the ecouomic decisions of users tal<en on the basis of these filancial statements

Rcport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act we report to the extent applicable that:

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

knor.vledge and belief '\vere necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid

statements"

l',ir,..5. Lakshntrpr"ttan'.l '1 st Street. Deivasigamani Roarjl Near lJusicAcacierrrv), Rovapettah Clenrrai - $i"i0.i1

Branehes r Ahnredabacil Eengalurul Bhubaneswarr'Chhattisgarhl Coimbatorej Gunturr 1'{yderabadl
Kochi/ Kc'ikata/ Kumbakr:nam/ Lucknow/ Madr.rrail fu'lurnbail Nagercoil/ Nagpurl New Oelhii Ranchil $uratl

Thiruvananthan*raml Tiirissr:rl Tirunelvelil Tirx*atturi Tirunnurl Trichv/ Tuticorin and Visakhaoatnarn
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(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaicl financial statements irave been kept so far as it appears from our examination of

those books and the reports of the other auditors"

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pr:ofit and Loss and tire Cash Flor,r, Statement dealt

with by tiris Report are in agreernent with the relevant books of accot-tnt maintained for: the

purpose of preparation of the financial statements.

(cl) in our opirrior-r the aforesaici financial statenrents comply with the Accounting Stanclards

specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On tjre basis of the r,vritten representations received from the directors of tire Con'rpany as

on 31st March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Dilectors of the Company none of the

directors of the cornpanies are disqr"ralified as on 31st llzlarch 2022 frc:m being appointed as a

dir:ector irr terms of Section 764 (2) of the Act.

(f) lVitlr respect to the'adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate report in

Annexure

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance n,ith

Rule 1l of the Companies (Audit and Ar,rditor's) Rules 2074 tl onr opiniorr ar-rd to the best of

onr information and according to the explanations given to ns:

i) There \,vere no pending Iitigations n hicJr wouid Impact the financial position.

ii)The Compairy did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts)

ir-rcluding derir.ative colrtracts.

iii) Tliere ,where no amolu,rts required to be transferred to the Investor Educatiorr. ancl

Pr-otection Fur-rd by The Companv.

For A John Moris & Co.,

Accountants,

FIIN: 007220 S

PIace: Chennai

Date: 27-05-2022

. Sebastin

Partner

M"No.218962

UD IN : 222189 62Al TUB E9 69 I

Itir:.5 l-arshn:ipuram 1st Sire*t, *eivasiSanani Qi:adi l';*;r lo,lirsi;A.caiiemy). Rr:iyapellat {ll*r-rnai -;3ili: il 1i

\si; +{)1-44-281i f;r103-/i i 7S670114S35 F;:x *44-2811 17';i) [-r"riail r irri:(gajol"rr:moris.com. Wcnsit* w!vw.aiLrirt]flrrrli ')
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Thirr:vananthapuramJ Tirrissuri Tirur:elveliJ firr"rpatturl Tirurrpur/ ]'richvl Tuticorin and Visakhapatnam
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ANNTXU
IIIACCORDANCE WLTH THE EOMPANIES (AUDITORS'REI'ORn ORDER 2020

1. (a) The Companl, has mair-rtained proper records showilg full particuiars ilcluding
qr-rantitative details and sihration of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us fixed assets are physically verified by the management at reasonable

intervals nhich in our opinion is reasonable iooking to the size of the Company and the nafure

of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our

examjnation of the recor:ds of the Company the Cornpan), does hold title deeds of immovable

properties.

2. 'Ihe comPany is providing a service and he;rce provision relating to inventory is nol
appticable.

3" According to the trformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

exanrination of the books of account it was obselved that the Company has not grantecl Loans

to corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

4. In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us the Company
has complied i.t'ith the provisions of section 185 and 1,86 of the Act with respect to the
investments made. The company has not granted any Ioans to its directors"

5. During the year tire Companv has not accepted any deposits from non-rnembers. As sucl-r

the cornpliance with tl-re directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 of tire Companies Act 20 L3 and rules framecl there uncler are not appiicable.

6. As per information & explanation given by the management maintenance of cost recorcts

has not been prescribed by the Central Govemment under subsection (1) of sectionl43 of the

Companies Act 2013 for any of the activities of the Company.

7. (a) According to the records the Compani has been generalll, reguiar in depositing lvith
appropriate authorities,r-rndispr-lted statutor)/ dues inch_rding Goods and Service Tax ernci other
applicable statr-rtory dues during the year.

(h) According to the information and explanations gi
r-espect of income tax and service tax which harze

dispute-s.

ven to us there is no amounts pa

not been deposited on account

hlo.S, Lakshmiorrarn lst Street. Deivasigarlari Roadi lJear l\4usicA.cadenry). Rr:yapettaii, Chennai- 60C 01,1

lei +?1-44-281.1 6CC3-4 r 7t-167034CI35 Fax.0.14-281 ; 'ti',)- r-mail :infoiQajolrr"imci'r$ mrn. We0siie \rywlv.alohnmr:ri.$ li:ii-i

Branehes : Ahmedabacll Bengalurul Bhubaneswari Chhattisgartrl CoimbatoreJ Gunturl Hyderabarll
Kochil Kolkata/ Kumbakonam/ Lucknow/ Madurai/ Uturni:ail Nagerc*ill Nagpurl New Delhi/ Ranchil $urati

Ti"liruvananthanurarnl Thrissurl -tr"irunelvelil Tirusatturl Tirunnr-rrl Trichvl Tutic*rin and Visakhaoatnarn
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(c) According to tl're information and explanations given to us no amount is required to be

transferred to investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant

provisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of i956) and rr-rles made there r"rnder has been

transferred to such fund within time"

.3. Accorclit g to the records, there are no transactions recorded in the books of account that

harro been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tl-re tax assessments under

lhe Income Tax Act, 196'L (43 of 1961).

9. Based o.r1 olrr ar-rdit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the

lnan.rgement'r,r,e are of tire opinion that the Company has not defaulted ir-r repayment of dues

to a linancial irrstitution bank or debenture holders"

10. the Cornpany did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(inclucli:rg debt instrurnents). Term loans r.t ere obtained by the Company and the same was

applied for the purpose it was raised for.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us no materiai fraud by the

Cornpany or on tl-ie Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during

tlre course of our audit.

12. The Company is not a chit fund or a Nidhi /mutual benefit firndisociety, Accordingly this

paragraph of the Or:der is not applicable.

i3. Accordlng to the inforrnation and expianations given to us and based on our examination

of the records.of the Company transactions nritir the related parties are incompliance r.t,iti-r

secticrns 777 and 188 of.the Act where applicable and cletails of such transactions have been

djsclosed in the financial statements as required bv applicabie accountjng standards.

14, The comparly is not manclatorily requirecl to appoint an intemal auditor (under Sec 138

read witlr Rule 13), hence this paragraph of the order is not applicable.

15. According to the information anci explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the recorqls of the Cornpany the Conrpany has not entered into any non-cash transactions

its d ircc tors

l6.Accordine to the jnformation and explanations given to us and based on our exarnination

of the records of the colnpany,

a) the company is not required to be registerecl under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act 1934,

b) the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Ffurance

iVithout a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the lleserve Bank of India as

Reserve Bank. qtf ludia Act, t934;

No.S, Lakshrtipr.:ram 1st Streel, D*ivasrgamanj RaacJi Near lv4usicAcademy), Rovapettah. Chennar - SOC C14

1bl +1;1-44-2811 6003-4i?6S7034935Fax.044-2811 t?1ll f-nrari :into@ajnirnmoriscom.r,\lebsite'www.alohnmorisr-'r-.,i:
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c) the comparly is lot a Core Irrvestment Company (CIC) as clefir-iecl in the regulations made

bJ, the Reserve Bank of hrdia'

17. According to the r-ecords, the companl' has incnrrecl a cash loss of I{s' 7,85'750'36 during

the current financial year but has not incurred any cash loss during the immediately preceding

finatrcial year'.

]8. There has not been any resignation of the statutoryr auditors during the year'

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing ancl expectecl dates of realization of financial

assets anci payrnent of financial liabilities, information and explanations given to us and on

the basis of our examination of the books of account, no material uncertainty exists as r:n the

clate of the auclit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the

d.ate of balance ,i-t"et us and when they fali due n'ithin a period of one year from the balance

sheet dait'.

20. 
.I.he 

company does not fall uncler the categorv of companies to r'vhich CSR obligatiotrs

appli as speciiied in scheclule VII under sec 135 of the Cornpanies Act, 2013 and hence this

palagratph of the order is uot applicabie'

21.There have been no qualifications or ad.verse remarks in the Companies (Auditor's Report)

O,der (CARO) reports of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements'

For A ]ohn Moris & Co.,

Accountants,

FRN: 007220 S

J. Sebastin

Parher
I'lace: Cl-rennai

Date: 27-05-2022
M.No.218962

UDIN : 222189 62 A]TUBE969 8

No.S, r-akshmipuran: 1st Stre*1, Deivasigar-nani Roadi Near t\4usicAcatlemy). Royapettah' Chennai- 60$ {")14

Tel . +$i-44"2gi1 0003-4 r 7667034935 Fax: {}44^251i j71; fi-marl : irrfr:@ajohr'nroris.ionr. websitll wniw a]ohnnrori-c .' '''

Branches : Ahnledabad/ Bengalr-lru/ Bhubaneswarj ehhattisgarhl Coimbatorel Gunturl l"{yderabadl

Kochil Kotkatal Kurnbak*naml Lu*knowl Madurail l\lumniil l{a{ercoil/ Nqqpyl.l New Delhil Ranchil suratl

Thir*vananthanrrraml Tlrrissrrr/ Tirrrnelvelil Tirllm;zttrrrl Tirrrnnirrl Trichv/ Tuticorin and Visakhaoatnam
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ANNEXURE -'B' TO THE AUDITORS' REPORJ.

sliiji_EcTloNjt oF sECTIoNlA3 OF rHE CqMPANIEST\CT20UI1"THE AgrL

iVe l"rave audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mls. Integrated

Iliteclr Limited ("the Company") as of 3Lst March 2022 it.t coiunction with our audit of the

financial stateme'nts of the Company for tlte;,ear ended on that date.

Vlanagement's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Companv's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financiai reporting criteria established by the

Company co;rsidering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Fjnancial Reporting issr"red by the Institr-rte

of Chartered Accountants of lndja (ICAI). These responsibilities include t[-re design

in-rplen-rentation and maintenance of adequate iltemal financial controls that r,r,ere operating

effectivelrr for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence

to company's policies the safeguarding of its assets the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors the accuracy ar-rd completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of

reliable finar-rcial information as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

l'inancial reporting based on olrr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Repor:ting (the "Gtridance Note") and the Standards on Auditing

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 113(10) of tl-re Companies Act 2013

to the extent applicabie to an audit of intei:nal financial controls both applicable to an audit of

1r-rternal Fir-rancial Contlols and both issued by tire lnstitute ol Chartered Accountants of lndia.

Those Stanc{ards and the Guidance Note require that we comply witl-r ethicai requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectivel;z in al1 material respects.

Our audit invohres performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about ihe adequac\,

intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their o-per.rting effec

Our audit of .internal financial controls over tinancial reporting included o

understanding of intemai financial controls over financial reportirrg assessing the risk th

material n,eakness exis[s and testing ancl evaluating the design and operating

No.5, Lnr<shmipur;:nr'l st Street Deii,asiQar:ani Rnarli xjearli4L;sirAr:arJemy), Rovapett';h Cheirlai - li)(lr ;j1,
'iei +9'1 -44"?811 B0{13-4 17(67CI-?4935f ar il.44-381i l?1?' i:-niai' rrtrlif 6rri,.rmoris coin, '..&ei:site lvwwt:tii--ri}r,{r,,: l

Branches ; Ahmedabadl Bengaluru,l Bhubaneswarl Chhattisgarhl Coirnbatorer Gunturl Hyderabadl
Kochil Kolkatal Kumbakonarnl LucknowJ Madurail Murnbail Nagerc*ill Nagpurl t'Jew Delhi/ Ranchil Su:'atl

Thiruvananthanrrraml Thrisisrjrl Tirrrnelvelil Tiruuatturl Tirunnuri Triclrvl Tuticorin and Visakhaoatn;ryi

l,l'

lr

62



ffi- $ffiffiffi ffiffiwqfis ffi ffiffi.*
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Effectivepess of internal cr:ntrol basecl on the assessed risl<, The procedures selected depend

on tire auditor s jucigment Lrcluciing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the financial staternents whether due to fraud or error'

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for oi:r auclit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls svstem over

financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

pleparation of financiai statements for extemal purPoses in accordance with generaliY

acceptecl;rccorrntirrgpriLrcip}es.Acompairl,'sinterrraltinancialcontroloverfinarrciatr

reporting inclucles those policies and procedures that

i. Pertain to the maintenance of recorcls that ilr reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the tr:ansaitions and dispositions of the assets of the comPany;

ii. lrrovicle reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessarlr to permit

preparation of financial staternents in accorctauce w'ith generally accepted accounting

pr:inciples and tl-rat receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onlv in

accorclance rvith ar-rthorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii. provicie reasonable assllrance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition Lrse or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financiai statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

B".utrr" of the inherent Lirnitations of lntental Finarrcial Controls over Financial Reporting

inclr-rding the possibility of coilusion or improper management override of controls material

pisstaternents clue to error or fraud may occltr aud not be detected. Also proiections of any

evalr,ration of the internal financial controls over financial reportilrg to future periods are

subject to .tl-re rjsk that the internal financial control over financial reporting ma,v

in;rdequate because of changes in conclitions or that the degree of compliance rt'ith tire

or procedures tnay deteriorate.

Ng.5. i.-akshmipurarn l sl Street, Deivasigamani ft*aCi Near l\,{rsic Academ5r), Rcirapeitai: Chennai - n0* C 1{

I'ei +$l-4,i-?fi'11 6003-4 i?6e7034S35 Fax.lJ44"!811 i712 f-niari irfo@alnnnmoris.conr.lt'sbsite:www.aJCnniT or:: 'r

Sranches ; Airrnedabadl BengaluruJ Bhuhaneswarl Chhattisgarh/ Coirnbatorel Gunturl Hyderabadt

Kochi/ Kolkata/ Kumbakonaml Lucknowl Mac!urail Munrbai/ Nagercoill Nagpurl New Delhii Ranchi/ $urati

Thiruvat'lanthanurarn/ Thrissurl Tiruneirrelil Tirupattr-rrl Tiruppurl Trichv/ Tuticr:rin ancl Visakhapatnairt
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Opinion

hr our opi:rion the Company has in all material respects an adeqtrate internal financial controls

systern over fi.nancial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting

were operating effectively 2s at 31st March 2022 based on the internal control over fitrancial

reporting criteria establjshed b), tl'l* Cornpany corrsidering the essential cornponents of

intemal controi stated in tire Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issr-red by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For A John Moris & Co.,

Accountants,

FRN: 007220 S

Place:Chennai

lJate: 27-05-2022

J. Sebastin

Partner

M.No.278962

UDIN : 222789 62 AITUB E969 8

No.5 l*airshmipuram 'i st $tr*r:i, Deii,,asrgananr Flcaili N*,?r L,lLlsic Ac;arjern-v), Rovapelti:h Chennai - 600 ii1.1
'iei 

. -"91-44-2811 6003-.r i 7667034035 Fax 04,1 ,2811 1 r 1; :-naii . :ri.fc(lair:i:nmoris.conr. \'Alebsile wrvw.ajohnrroris i-'tr-r

Branches : ,A.hrnedabad/ Bengalurui Bhubaneswarl Chhattis.garh/ Coimbatorel Gunlur/ Hyderabad/
Kocltil Kolkatal Kurnbakonaml Lucknow/ Maduraii lVlumbail Nagercoil/ Nagpurl New Delhil Ranchil Surati

Thiruvananthanuraml Thrissuri Tirrrnelvelil Tiruoatturl Tinrnorrrl Trichvl Tuticnrin and Visakhaoatnat"!x
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Notes to Standalorre financial statements for the year ended 31st Marci'r, 2022

/\. (-'Ol{t'ORA'I Ir INFOI(N,IA"I'lON:

it"rteet atrrci Higl-rtecir i.-rmitt:ti is .r I)r-rb]ic-- lrmitcii ,--1)llrDnlr], bV siralers havrng lts rc,[-]rstererl oi'f ict:

15{li l15.CiSOl\S CO\4PI;EX,3I(D FI"OCII(,MON t'lEfi{ ltO,\D, EGN4OI(E, CHENNAi-6 Chcnnar IN

!N, bearing CIN I-72300TN1993P1,C024583. l'hc corrpany is listed ir-r Bombay Stock Excharrge. The Prrncr

busrr-ress activity of the conrpany is Softlvale Developrnent Services^

B, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI,ICIES

1. Basis of Preparation o{ Financial Statements:

I'l.rc accountinu ;roiicics arc applieci con.sistcntlv to all tho periods preser-rted in the financial staterncnts. All

asscts antl lialbiiitie-q iravc Lrccn classifieci as cLu'l'el-rt or noll clrrrerlt as pr:r'tirc, Conrpranv's r1or1ral opcla

cycic arrd otl.rer criteria set ollt in the Scheriuie Ill to tire Companies Act,2{.)13.

-il',t: fittancial steitements a]'e I:)rescnted in INR, tire functj.orral cr.rrrencv of the Company. Rounding

.rrnortnts Al1 auor-ttrts clisclosed in thc financial statements and notes have been roundecl off to the

lakhs a-q por the requiremerrt of Sclredr-rle ill, unless otherwise staled.

2. Use of Estinrates and judgnrents:
'[he preprsr;r1ion of thc fin;rnciai statements rcqrrires the Nlanagernent to make, judgmc.nts, estimates

irssurnPtiorts that affect tl're repolted Lunourlts of asscts and liabilitics. rlisclosulc of contingcr-rt liabilitres as

the ciatc' o{ the firancial statements ar-rd tl-re reportcd amounis oi revct-rr-tc and expenses durtng the

prel iod. The rccognition, nleasllrcment, classification or clisclosr-rre of an rtern or: information in tire
statemcnts is rtradc rclt,ing on thcsc cstimates. The cstimates ancl jr-idgemcnts used il-r the preparatron of

iin.rtrcial stittelrents arc'continr-ror-rs1y e.,-lt,oto,, by thc. lrranagement and are based on historical

alrcl variolts otirer assut'nptions and factors (inclr.tcling expectatior"is of future events) that the

6clicvc's to bc reasonablc r-urdcr thc cxisting circumstances. Actr-ral resr"rlts may diffel' from those cstirnatcs

r\nv rcrrisjon io accrxtntiug dstinates is r.ccogniserl lrrospecti\iel\,i11 crtrrent anrj fr-rture per.itcis.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertaintv
-l'l-rr' 

Contpanv is t'equired to make judgemcnts, estir-rrates and assumptions about tire carrying arnount

asscts and liabilities ihat are not readily apparent fi'om other solrrces. The estimates and associated

assltlrLptitlns are bascd'on historical experie'nce and other iactors tl-rat are considered to bc rclet,ant.

esiiLn.rtes arrci r-urderiying assr-rrnptions are reviervcci on an on,going basis_

(a) Estrmatirxt of current tax expenses arrd prly3|lg - Refer r-rote no. - 14

3. Prrrpertl,, plant ancl equipment (lrPE)

i)rttpcrtv. plant and eiluipment is stated at acquisitiorr cost llet oi accumr,riated ciepreciation and accnmulated

irr-rpairmcr-ri iossc's, if anrr"

Tl.,e cost ttf an itcrn oi property, iand and equipment compriscs its pur:cl-,ase price, inciudir.rg import

cnd nou-r'c'func'lable purchase taxes, alter dedricting tladc discounts and lebates, any directiy attlibutabie

costs of blinging tire asset to its rvorking cor-rd-ltion for its intendecl nse and cstimated costs of

;trrcl r't,ttnovitts tirc item and rcstoring thc item aurl restoring the site on uririch rt is iocater-i.

Cairrs atrd lo-sscs t)it disposals arc cir:tcnnincd.bt,cortrpalitrg plrrcecds r.r,ith calrr.'ir-rg amorrnt. Thcst

rrrli.rcicri irr tirt: Statcrncut r'rf Profit and [-oss.

*"{
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4. !inancial lnstrurnents;

Fiuancial assets

Financiai asscts arc lecognised r.r,iren thc C.orlparrv becomc.s a part,v to the cont:"actu;ri provisions of

urstf urrcllts.

I)ere cogiritiorr

The Corupanl, elerecognises a financial assct when the contractual rigirts to the cash fiows from tire

assct e-xpire. or it trausfers rigirts to rccelve cash fiolls from an asset, it e\.alllates if anci to lvl1at extent lt ha

lc'taineci the i:isks anci relr,ards oI oivnersl-rip. When it has neitl-rer transferred nor tetainecl sttbsiantialiy aii

thc i'rsks arrd ren,arcis of the asset, nor transfcrrc'd controi of the asset, the Company continttes tcr

tirc transferreci assr't to the extent <,lf the Compran-\r's corrt'nr-r'rrg inrrohrernerrt.

.in that case, the (Jompan1, ;r1:;o recognises an associated liabilit1,. Thc transferrcci arsset and the' associated

iiabilitr, are rneasured on a btrsis that rcflects the rights ancl obligations tirat the Comp-.any ir"rs r"etair-red"

I;inancial Liabilities

Initiai Recognition and rueasuren'rent

lijnancial liabilities ar..c recognised r.t,hen the Companli becornes a part)/ to the contractual provisions r:f

instr-Lrmcr-rts. Financial ljabilities are initially recognised at fair rraiuc net clf transaction costs foi ai1

liabilitics not carricd at lajr valr"rc tirror-rgir profit tl' ioss.
'I'hc 

Compan),',$ fir-r.rncial liabilities incir-rclc's tradc ancl othcl pal,;1blcs, loans and borron,irrgs inclr-rding

overci ra fts.

Subsequent measurement

Irini'rucial liabilities tneasttled at amortiscd cost are sllbseqlrently measurcd at using EIR nrethod

liabilitics can'icd at fair.r,alr-re thror-rgh profit or loss are ureasured at fair vaiue with ail changes in fair

rccognised in tirc Statcnicnt of Profit anti Loss.

Firrancial Cr.rarantee Contracts

Financial sltal:antec'col'ttlacts issr-red by the Company are thosc c()ntracts tirat reqnircs a p;ryn-rent to bc

Or to i'eimbtll'se the holder for a loss it irLcurs LrecaLrse the specilied <lebtors fails to n-lake payrnent lvhen

itl acr:ot'ciancc with the telm ol a clebt instrumcnt. Financial gr-rarar-rtee contracts are recognizcd irritialiy as a

liabjlitv at i;rjr valr"rc, adir-rsted for transactior"r costs that are dilectly attributable to the issr.rance of

,qua ran.tce.

l)c-recognition

.A' tLnatrcial liability is derecognised n,hen tire trlrligatron Llndcr the liability rs dischargeci or car-rceileci

expires. \'Vhcn an cxisting financial liability is repiaced by anothcr from thc samt lenLier on sr-rbstantially

difir:rcnt tcr-rns, or the tclms ot ;-in exisLing iiability are sLrLrstatltiallv mociifieci- sucir an cxcirlurg.,

ttlo(iification is treatcd as thc rlcrccognition o[the origina] liabiljtv and the recog]lition of a nor, liabiiity.'fiic
r1 ifft:rt'r'rcc tn the rcs;rcctivc carrYrne;rmi.n-rnts is recognized in the statcment oi profit or loss.

Ofisetting of financial instruments

Irin.rrrcral assets and firrancial liabilities are offset anrl the ncl amount is reported in the Balance Sireet ii
'is a cr-irrcntly eniorccable lega1 right b offset the recogniscd ar-nor,rnts and there is an intention to settle rtn a

net Lrasis, to r"ealise tl-re assets ancl :^ettle the liabilities siurlritancousl\,.

. -l
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5. $air \ralr"re N{easurem(}11t

1'1-rc Comparrlr rncAstircs iir-r;rrrciai instrnnrents, sr-rc].. as, clcrivatives, investrlents at iarr.r,ailic at eacl-r
si-tt:t't datct. F;ril vaiue is tl-re l,rricc ti'rat rq:ulcl irr: r.ecciyrcj t1 seil a1 asset or pairi tg tr.ausfcr^a lrabi[ty r1
oreicliv trallsilctl()11 botlvcen tnarket oarticipant.s at the rneasurenlent 11.rte.'I'l.re lair vaiuc nreasLlr:emenl
L-aseci ou Lht: presr-rmption tlr;it the tlansaction b.sell the asset or tt'ansfer. tire liabiiitv take-c Lriace either.:

(a) in thc Dl'incipal market for the a$set or liabilitl,, ol.

(b) In thc trb.sence of a principal mal'ket, in the most advarrta6leoLrs market for the asset or liability

Ali assets ancl liabilitics for r,r,hich fair varir"rc is meastrrct-l ol clisclosccl ir-r thc financial statements
catcqorised rvithin the fair: rraiue hicrarchy, desclibecl as follorvs, Lrasecl on tl-re lorvest level inpr"rt that
sigr-rificaut to tire fair value measurement as a urholc:

(i) Lcircl 1 - Qr.toted (r-inadjusted) marl(et prices in arctive rnarkets for ider\tical assets or iiabilities
(ii) Levei 2 - Vah"ratiou techniqr-res for ',r,hich the lowest leve1 input that is significant to the fair
mcasuremerlt is dir.ectiy or indirectly o"bservabie
(iii) i,evel 3 - Valrratir)n rechnicjlles for r,virich the lolvcst level inpurt that is significani ro tho farr
illeasrl rerneltt is unob-.ct.vabl c

ls

['-or assets and liabilitics that are recognised rn the firranciai statements on a recllrring basis,
cietcrmincs r.Vheihel transfers have occnlred betn,ec.n levels irr the hierarchy by re-assessing
(Lrasecl on thc lorvest ievel inptLt tirat is significant to tl're fair value nreasuLement as a n,hoie
t,tch rcportilr$ l.eli.rci.

tire Cornpany

,) at the enci

iro| tlre ptlrPosc of fair r,;il.r-re clisclosr-rres, thc Coi-r'rpany ir.rs detelminccl classcs of arsseis and liabilitic.s on
basis oi the naturc, ciralacteristics arrcl risks oi thc assei or liabilitv ar-rd thc lcvci of the fair valuc hicrarcirv a

cxlrlaiucd irborre

(r. llrr,entory

Ilrvelltories arc \/alued at the lorver of cost and net realisabie valLle. Cost is computecl on a weighteci
i-.as is.

7. Cash and Cabh Equivalents:

Cash ancl Casir eqr"rivaletrts inclr-Lcic cash anci Cheque in hancl, barrk balarrces, dcrrrarrci cicposit-s rvith
.rnti othcr si^rort-tor11-l l-rig;hlv liquic.l jnl,c.strnents that arc r.eacli11, convcrLtbic to knorvr-r arnoLri-rts of cash
r't'hich are sr'ibjcct lo arr insicnificar-rt rjsk of cl-ranges rn r,aiLrc n,hcre original maturiiv is three montlrs or less

B. Foreign Currency Transactions: NIL

9, Ilevenue llecognition:
' Rendering of Services

il-tcotlre fronr scn':ces renrltlretl is recofnise'tl ba-sr'cl on invoiccs raisr-,rJ Ior ser:r,icc pror.rcieci on;rn;rccruai
l,-a -.is

Rer:eur-te is lrrellsurcci ab fair valLlc of tire corrsidclatiol receiycci or rccciv.rbic. aftcr eiecjr"rctir-r, of
djstor-tuts, all\: taxL's or dr-rtics collccted on beiralf of thc govcrnment which are levied on saies such as
& Sclvico taxc (GST) and ser.r,ico tax.

Iuterest

llevcnitc ts recogni-sed tlu a titne proportlorl basis taking into account the amount or-rtstanding ancl
intcrest rate appiicable and basc.cl on Effecti'e intercst rate n'retirocl. .

Ditidend

l)i r,,iclenti hr corne i s ized rvlren to lcccrvc tho is establisl-ied.

e fltr '' -'
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10. Ernplol'ee Berrcfits:

Empio\ree Bepn[its: -'fhe Companv doesnot falls lvith in the applicability of Empioyee Beneflt pians.

'11"'Iaxes on Income:

Inr:ome tax cclmprises current and deferred tax" Income tax exPense is recognized in the statement oi

aucl loss except to the extent it relates to items dilectll' recognized in eqr'rity or in other

'incorlc'.

Cur.re'nt tax is baseci on taxabie profit ktr the vear. Taxabie profit is clifierenl from accor-tt.tting orofit duc

temporary differences bet'"r,een accounting anci tax treatn'rent-s, and c1r-re to items that are nevcr taxabie ol'

dedr-rctibie. Tax provisions are included in cnrrent liabilities. lntercst and penalties on tax liabilitrcs

prurridecl for ur the tax charge. The Companv offsets, the cr"rrrent tax assets arrd liabilities (on a vear orr

ba-si5) 1a,hgr* it has a legally enforceable right and lvhere it interrds to settie slich assets and liabilities on a

l':asis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net.basrs.

L)efcr:recl income tax is recognized lrsing the balance sheet approach. l)efcrred income tax assets

liabilitics'are rccognizecl fur ciccluctibie ancl taxable tcmporary differences arising betu'een the tar base

assc.ts ancl liabi.lities ancl theit'carn/ing anlorrnt in financial statenlents" I)efelr"eci it-rcome tr\ rsset

recognizecl to the exret-rt that it is probabie iirat taxable prolit u'iil be available against rvhici the

tenl.por"ary differences, and the carry f911ror6 oi unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

Defr.rreri tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realiseci

the tuturc. '

The carrying amollrlt of defer:red income tax assets is revicr't,ed at eacl-r'reporting clate anci reducecl to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sr-rfficierrt taxable profit r,r'ill bc available to allow ali or part of

c'iefclrccl ir-rcor-ne tax assct to be utilized. Deferr-ed income tax asscts and liabilities arc mcasured at thc

lates that are crpecteci to apply in the period u,iren the asset is lealiz-ed or the liabilit)r is settled, based on

rates (ancl tax larvs) that have been enacted or sllbstantiveiy enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax iter.ns are recognrsed in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or ciirectly

equity

lr{inim,"rrn Alternatirre'l'ax ('Mr\T') crcdit is lecognrsed as ar"r assct onlv tr'hrtn.rnd to the extent therc'

cotrr,it-rcin!i evirlcnco theit the Comparrl'rvill pav normal incor-tre-tax clrtriuI the:;precified period.

Clonrp.rnv rerrie'ws the samc at each b;-rlaucc shcet ciate ancl rvrites down t1-re carrying ainollnt of MAT cred

cntitlcmcrlt to tht: extent tirere is no longer col-rvincing evidellce to the e{fect that Company will pay

ir.rcomc-tax dr-rlirrg the specified periocl.

iax
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12. l]orrorving Cost:
(icnerai ancl specific borrorrrit-rg costs ti.lat are directl \r attlibutable to thc acquisitiou, constructioll
rrlrirllrctrorr of qtralifving assets are capilalizeci as a part of Cost of tlrat assets, dLrr:ing thc perioci till ail
.ictirritres nL,cessitry to prrepays the t)r-raiifying assets For its intendod Llse or sale are complete r|-rring
perio('i ot trnrr: that is requirecl to con-rplete anci.prepare the assc.ts for its intendeci rise or saie.
assets are asscts tlra.t necessar:il1, takc ;r sr-rbstautial per:io<i of tinle to get ren.i\/ for.their intendcd rlse ()r saic.

Oiher l-rttrt'ou/il1g costs al-e 1'(rcognlzeci as an expe.n-se in tire periocl iir lyl-ric1-r ti.re1, 61-s incua.eci.

l 3.liarnings Fcr Share:

Basic carnings per shares are calculatecl by clividing the r-ret profit or loss after ttrx for the period a
tti c.qurty sirarcholders by the rveighteci averagc nltmber of cquity sharcs outstanding rluring the perioci
the pr-rrpose 9f calcuiatlng dilutccl earrrings pcl' share, tlre net profit oI loss for tirc' perioci ath.ibutablc to
equrt'r sirareiroidcrs and. the lveightod avelagLr rrumbel of siraros outstanding clnring tire perioci is adlustecl
ior the effects of ail diiutive potentiai cquitlr 5112 y-gs.

14. Leases:

IVhere the Compa15,'is Lessee

l-eases. ivtrcre the lessor eflecti vel)' r'ctai11s sr-rbstantiallv all the risks and bcnefits of or,vrrcrship of the i

itcnr- at'c classified as operatir-rg lcascs. Operating lcasc pa)inlents are recognizcci as an oxpcnse tr.r
Slatc,merrt of Profit and Loss on accrlial basis as pcr t.he terrns of agrcements entered rvith the collnter par.tres.

Where the Companv is Lessor

I-'oa:;es in rt'irieh the Compauv clocs not trarrsfer sr,Lbstarrtiallv all the risks ancl bcncfits of o'uvnr-rshirr Oi
,ls:rc[ .ilc c]assifir:d as operating ieascs. Asscts sr'ibjcci to operatlrrg lcascs .rre i.cir-rded iri pl'olrcrty, Plaut and
cquipnterrt. -fhc 

C.nrpa:r), recog,izcs rc^sc rentars fr.rn tl-re pro,crtv lcaseci or-rt. o^ a ccmai basis as pcr
tcr"nrs o[ ag rceltlcllts urtcrotl with tho counter parties. Costs, inclr-rdirrg dcprecrairor-r_ arr: rccognrzcci as
expcnsc iir tI-rr: Slatement of profit and I_i.rss^

15. Pror..isions, Contingeirt Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A plr.;vision is rccosnised if, as a result of a past errerrt, tl'rc, gr.or.rp iras a present legai or constructi
olrligation that can be estirnateci reliabltr, anct it is prob.rbie that an outflo,,v of econorric bc.nefits rvill
requirccl to lettlc tlre olrli93tiep".

Prtrrrtsious for ot]c't'otts c'lntracls ate recognizctl tr,irc.r-r lhc expcctecl benefits ttt bu cicrive.rl Lry thc Companv
i:tottr a ccintract rll'e ioh/L'r than the utrarroirlablc cclsts oi mectirrg the futurc obligations uncier the contract.

A riir;ci.s,rc for c,.tingcnt liabilities is made \,vhcre tilere is a possible obligation or a prescnt obligatirtn
t-nay probably not reqr,rire an or.rtflor,r, oi resources or an obligation for rvhich the future outcome cannot
asccrtaincd rvith rcasonablc certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation rt,hcrc the
r;i:outfir>n, of resoLrrces is remotc, no prrovisi(x1 ot ciisclclsr"rrr: is rnade.

itssets ai'L? neither nor d.isclosccl in financi;rl StatelnL)t1ts.

ili*i"i:'l'"' 
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Notcs to standalone financial statcnrents ior the year enclccl 31st N4arcil, 2022

It lnt,eslments

As at anla

I{s.

ir3.i5
I r.r,.',,srr.nt:rrt rn Suirsidiaries

l'otai 5

As at 31st

,i-i. l::

,._i I q

Rs

.l -1 
ra<te llccti,r,abit:s

I'articulars

. , ,', rrii'LI, (on(rLr(,11,ri 
ijrloL:.

As at 31st Nlaret.,2022

Rs.

As at 31st N,Iar-ch, 1031.

lls.

13 .7'

,l Cash & c:rsl.l

i) nr cr:rront ac(.ou11ts

Cash ol hand

5 Shtrrt'ferm Loans and Advances

As at 31st N{arch, 2022

I{.s.

34.57

As at 31st \Iarch. 2021

Rs.

J+.J

0.1

34.61

As at at\)a

53.58

Iiccr:i.,.:tblc

Lo sr,rppiiors

r\s at 31st :02 i

;5.4:!

i5.4

f i:+rrr*i-'i,)
q{-

25L.7i

I'arti culars
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As at 31s{ Nlarch,202l

I(s.

As at

Rs.

l(.tained

47.83 59.C7B

As at As at 31st

6.40

Notes to Staldalone financial statem€nts fot the year ended 31st NIarch, 1022

i. L JlacolrciLrtioil ot nufiber of sha:ss at lhe eid of

lJniance ns at 31st [,[ar(h,2020

Add / {l,ess): Chinges dUr:ng tile lear
llalan.c ;s al 319t Nrnrch. 2021

.{.[i i (l,rss): Cild!1ges cluring the vear
tsnlarce ns at 3Lst N{arch,2022

No. of shares Anrount

Rs. trls.

0.1 l'lrms I riElts attnched to Equity Slrales:

rntenrn !ii!laicnci.
ln thr cvenl oi iiquidnlion oi thc Cofipany, the holders of equity shares h.ill be entitled to receive .rny ol the remaining asseis oi thc Conrp2ny, aFter distributron ol .ril prelerr:ntr,riinolnts l'he drsttibution !r'i]l be in pl-oportion lo ihd nunrber oI cc]uitY sh0res lrel(l by tltc Sircrchdderi.

of slr.rres held sh a re hol dcr liran su.,i shares in the

7 &

9 Defenecl'Iax

l0 'Iride

t1 'fernr

As at 31st Nlarch, 2022 A6 at 31st lUar(h, 2021

Ils. Rs.

i,000.46

1_000.4ri

i.00ti.46

1 000 46

Shnres oF lis I 0 eirch

Issued, Suirscribed anrl lairl upr

il,Jriit! jhfre! !i lls .10 eacil

1,000..111

Nvo. ol

as nt 31st

/ {l::ss); Chonilur rluling thc vcaf

is at 31st Nl^r.ir,2020

r'ii,c.ssi; (iralgts ciLrrrrlg lhe yodr

as a( :iist Vrnrclt,202l

shares
'X, flolding

titJ!rNlizlR

It.\\TC].\RI{IA

As ai "11st l\iar.h, :0i1

at 2022 As rt
Ils.

As at 31st 2022 As at 31st

Ils,to f\1rrro ar(l SDull ruter pris(s

b (lihers

0.63

Particulars
As at 31st l\tarch,2022 A6 at 3ist l\'lar.h,2L12l

l2 1'rovisions

a

rls

Rs. Rc

14.10 a-.10

Ternl fro\,isionr

6.10

lr:yf{ S,,g.r,!g{::! Paid rp share capirat:

lls.

5.3

Eq,rtfjlgjf\]seach lutty paid up wirh voring rights

5.55 Eo,r 5.56

5.03.s 1.?

s

I 0t0.i

Particuiars

irrcrr C)thers

Il(

Total

Dcierrcil'l-.\ i.,iabilities

- Lrr ii(iuLtfl Ii aidprecldliolr

Partiorlars

OLirer plv.tbles
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Notes to standalo.e financial state,rer.rts for the year e*ded 31st March, 2022

13 llevenue lronr

14 Other hrcorue

For the vcar en(ict

March 3l. 2i121

Its.

i4.4a

For the year errder

March 31,2A2-i

Rs.

4,8t

.i.O r

Iior C YEAT

ended N,larcl'r

71 )n))

Its.

5.J1
Saie r.lit:lrlr\,tcrs

Total 3.J /

tire 1,ear

ended NIarch

31.,2A22

Rs

6.78

6.18

For the year

ended NIarch

31,2022"

R.s.

3.38
I)epreci,rtion oi prop-iertv, priant ancl equipment (Refer note 2)

Total 3.38

For the year

ended l\,Iarch

3L 2A22

Its"

)./ 5
Saiaries, w,ages and bonurs

Total 9.75

For the year

ended Nfarch

a1 ,n,r,,

Its.

2.09

0.

0

11.15

0.01

2.81

0:rl

I .15

Total 7,67

l 5 Irrn Benefit

l{i I)epreciation and amortisation expense

ji' Otlier Ilx ses

Reirt

Listing lees

Agencv fees & Other expenses
Arl veli j 5sp1..n t expe,lses

lrrr-,rnent to r\uciitor.s - Auciit fees

.r,1 a rl.:etrn g tt bu sj nt ss pronr o lion expenses

l)osta ge, i el eph clrre,tComrn i: ni cati on

1)rirrli nq & Stationerv

1 raveiling & cgnvc.-vauce

Reprair d: mairrtenarnce expenses

lnterest & Bank cirarges

For the year cr.de r

March 31, ?021

l\: -

i 1 .1,i

I I 1.

For the year ender

March 31. 2021

Ils-

3.61

3.61

For thc ye ;rr encle r

Marcir 3I, :021

Rs.

lor

_:.4l

ll._

rj -li

l1

0.6

t].4

0.3

0.5

00Other

{{

1U.U:

Particulars
For

iient Receiver.i

Particulars

*h*r:**i"-{4

77



Particulars
For the year ended

N4arch 31st,2022

For the year ended

Marcl'r 31st, 2021

ils" I{s.
'T ax E.xpet-rses

Total income tax expense/(credit)

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31,st,2022

For the year ended

March 31st, 2021

Rs. Rs.

{71.24) (5.s4)Profit l(loss) hefore taxation

E,nacted income tax ratc in Irrdia

at the enacted income tax rate

line items:

credit not recognised

ax ense/ (credit)

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year enclec,l 31st N4arch, 2022

18 Incorne taxes

(a) fax e recognised irr the Statement of and loss:

A reconciliation betr,veen the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

r .+i :i+i'{ &

I
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PAIITICULARS
For tire year

ended

Marclr 37,2022

Iror the year ended

March 31. 2021

\{eighted average number of equity shares

Nominal value of eqr-iity shares

Pr'qfit after tax avaijable for equity

c arrd diluted Per Sl"rare

(11,24,000.00)

. 1,00,04,600.00

10.00

(0.11)

(5,s4,230.00)

1,00,04,600.00

10.00

(0.06)

Notes to Standalone financial.statements for the year enciec{ 31st N{arch,2022

19 Contingent liabilities & Commitnrents
'l-he comparr), {ioes not have an)/ cohtingent liabilities and Commitements (lnch-rcling Capitai
conr,ritmer-rts as on N4arch zl, 2022 (As at March 37,2027 - Nil).

?0 Per share iln

2\ Segment Ileporting

The Comparrv's Board of I)irectors has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
22 Related party disclosures

There were no relateci party transaction were carriecl or-rt cluring the year anci previous year..

Name of related party

lrrtegrated I"litech 5iingapore I,te l.id
lvlr. Sheil<ir r\bclLrl Farook

lvlr. ,A. Gerald Ebenezer

lntegrated Flitech ( .America) Corporation
\4r'. RajJeba l(unrar
Mr. A. Gerald Ebenezer

I'osition

SLrbsidia11,Conrpanv

Director

Director

Subsidiary Companv

I)irector

Director

*!ortfr*!1&

t'
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Particulars
FVOCI FVTPL Amortised cost Total fair value Carrying

anlount
Rs. n^

I\5 lts. .tt5, Rs

63.1 5

34.57

s3.58

63.15

34.57

53.58

53.i5

J+ t.

53.5,!

lnventory
'j'rac1e 

Receirrables

Cash and cash eqr-rivalents

financial assets

T'otal Financial ass

assets

vestments

151.31 151.31 151.31
Financial iiabilities

Bolron, in,Is

Others

.l-otal finaicial Iiabilities

de prtt_y;1$]s5

Notes Forrning part of Standalone Financial Staternents

23 Irinancial instruments

ilhe iair l'aiues of the financial assets and liabilities are inch,rclecl at the amount at lvhich the instrument couici be
exchaused in a cttrreilt transaction betr'veen rvilline parties. other than in a forced or liauidation sale"
l"l-re t'ollorvjng metirods anci assumptiorrs were useci to estimate tire fair vaiues:
i liair rralr're of cash and short-ternr cleposrts, tr:acle ancl other sirort term receivables, trade payables, other cr.rrrc..r
liabilities, sirot:t terrn loaus from tranks ancl other finar-rcial instittrtions approximate their canl,ing amounts iargelv oLre
to short tei'm matr_rrities of tirese irrstruments.
2 l-inanciai instn.ttlents with fixed anci variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters suci.r

'fhe Cornpany uses the following hierarchy for deterrnining and disclosing the fair value of financiatr instruments by
valuation technique:

l-evel l: qltoted (r'madjr.rsted) p-rrices in active marketi for identicaj assets or Iiabilities.
l-evel 2: other technicltles for lvl'rich all inpr-rts rvhicli have a significant efiect on t6e recor:deci fair,alue are obser,.,iiirit.
eithel clirectly o.r indirectly.
l-eYcl 3: tecirniques r'vi-ricl, use inpttts that have a significant efiect on the recor:decl fair vaiue that are not based on
obselrrable rnarket data.

'fhe carrt'ing amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as followsr
For Nlarch 31, Z.02Z

'l'hele $'ere no significant changes in classification ancl no siprificant movements betvveen the fair value irieralciry
classlficatior.rs of ti.ancial assets anci fir-rancial liabilities d,ring the period.

Irinancial risk factors

The Conrpanv's principal financial iiabilities comprlse loarrs and borrowings, advances and trade and other Paya bles
The Purpose of these financi -l liabilities lc to finance the Company' operations andS to provide to support
oper:at.ions. The Com panv' principal financiai ASSCTS include 10ans, trade and other receivables, and cash and
etprivale.nts that derive directl v from :1^

1l) operations.
Colrsir-lerirrg

rlsl(-

the slze and tlre operations of the Companlr, it 1S not exposed to Liquidity Risk, Market Risk and C

f;:;*iiri+r{''}

t'

i:
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Notes liurming Part of Stclclllone Linan,:ial Statenre rrts

2g C;pital risk managenrent
'1ho 

C omparrl,'s objcctives \ahdr lnanaginfi.capital arc io :

fr) saicgLraad lireir rbilitt' to conlinLre as a gorng concer,r, so lhilt the),can cortlinLre to provicie retrrrns ior
(ii) [r.liut0jn an optrni]i capitai struciurc to rctiuce tho cosi L)l cal)ita)

ln orcier to rrainiain or adjust the capitai struclrrre, ihe Compilnv mav issuc lerv shares, adju:;t tire r

ot diridetrils Paid to shareholclcrs L,ic.'lhe Cornpatry's policy is to maintain a siabic arlri strcng

sllucrlrre \r'itir ii iicus ur totai taluity so as to nlitintnilr inr.esior, creclii0r's ar)d r)rarkct conficience and

sustairr fururc: (ieVdlopnrcnt and growth of its busi,less.

25 First time adoption of lnd As
'J"he:tccrruntirrg poiicies set olrt in NotL, 1, have bcsn appi)ed in preparing the financial slatements froin the

vear ended lvlarch 3.1,2018, thc comparativc infornratlorr presented in thcse finarrcial staiements for the

year endcd March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 01.201 6

Cotrpanv'! date of transition), In preparing rts opcning lnd AS balance shrc't, the Companv has adjusted

iilc, anrounts rcporte(i previouslv in financial staicnrents prcnarcii in accrrrtlonce q,ith lhc accl)unting

sranditrds nolifieci rrnrler Companies (AccoLrnting Stanrlards) ltules, 2006 1as amenciecl ) anci oiher ruievant

lixemptions ald exceptions availed

A. Ind AS optionai exemptions

ii) Deerned Cost

1'lre Contpany on first titrle adoption of lrrd AS, has elected to continue with the carrl,ing vaiue iur ali

of its Prop€rty, piart & equipment and othcr intanBibie assets as recognised in the financiai statements

as at tlte ciate oi transition to lnd AS, measured a! per the prcvlous CAAP and use that as its deetned

cosls as dl the date o( trJltsttion,
(ii) Designation of previously recogrrised financial instruments

i)aragraphl)l98of inci.,\S101 givL.sill)optiontoancntit)'tocicsignatr'rnvestn)tnisLnecluitr

!r,itrLlllretlis itt l\tOC] on lhe basis til ihc facis and circLrnrstlnccs at tht date of lransition io ltrd

.r1S.'1 ht'r:onrpanl- hns opted t();rppl1, thjs e\(,[tpti()n for its in!eslment rn ctrrity Inycstmcnts

u.. lnd .qS inanLlatory exemptions

{i) Eslirnatcs

An cntitY's estirrat('5 in accordance u,ith Ind ASs at rhe ciaie of transition to ind AS shali be consistent

\\'ilh estirnat.'s made for the sarne tjate in accordance rvith previous CAAI'(aiter adjusimerris lo rr[iecr

dnj. diff{rrence rn accounting policres).

ln(l AS estimates ds at.'\pril 01, 20lo aro consisient with tire estim,ttes as nt the sante ddte m.l6E ln

confonli h, rvitlr previous CAr\I,.

flrt'Comprnv rnade est;males lor lollox,ing itcnr in accorclanc(r $,itil InLl AS at the dat!, of transition as

thcsr n,erc ncrt rcrlitirecl uncier previotrs CAAIr:

- Inprirnrent of financial asscts bdsea{ otr expccierl r:rtrlit loss nrodr-1.

(ii) Classi{ication and rneasurernent of financial assets

IIrrJ AS 101 requires atr ontitv to assrsr ciassjfication;rnd mcJsurenleut of frnancrri Jsscts (investmeni

in tlebt itrstrutrerlts) on the basis of the facts and circumstanccs that exist at thc dirie cf transition to

ind,\S.
(iii) Dr:-recognition of financial assets and financial tiabilities

The Company has elected to apply derecognition recluiretnents for financial assets and financial

iiabilities in Inci AS 109 prospeciively for transactions occurring on or after the date of tralsition to Ind

,a,5.

Iransition to lnd AS - Reconciliations

lherc rvelc no adjustmcnts required to bc, carlcrJ out pur-quant to the adopiion of the lnd AS b1,the

Cornpan,1,. )rrience, there are no recotlciliaiion linc itmes haVe been prcse[tcd.

Rccent.rccountitlg prouncen)cnts

lnd AS 
-,l 

15 - lleyenue frorn Contracts lrith Custorners

. illv{.lrch2ulE,theNIinistI\icfCorporatEr\ffairshasnotifiedtheCompanies(indiarlAccounting

Stn nd I rds) Amenci eci Ru les- 201 8 ("r nrend cd rLrtcs" ). As per the a menil i:rl ru le5, Ilcl AS I I 5 "Rc!,cnu e

irotlr cdnirircis tvirh cttsiortters" supursedcs Lrd .AS I L "Construction contracts" anci Incl AS I8, "Revcnue"
Itrri AS ll5 rnlrodtrccs a new framework of five stcp nrocie] for the analysis of revenuc transactions. The

modci spccifics thai rcrcnuc should be recogrriscci wlrc.n (or as) an cntit), transfer control of goods or

sr,rviccs to a custolter iii tite amount to rvhich

the entii,\' eaL)cfts to he crrliticd. lit)rtircr iirc new sianclitrLl recluires cnhanced disclosures abi:)Ui th.t ratLrre,

am('utt, li!rilnganti ulccrlairitt,of re|Laruerndcashllo\\,strisingfrornthcL,|tit),'srorrtrit!tswitil

ausiomis. Ilro nerv re,r,otirt'staltcl.trd Js rppiic:ble to tirc Cl)nrpnny trorn 1 ,\pri1 2018.

I itc CotllPanY is tvaiuaitni,, thc rcllurrc[]eni ol thu anrerd nrttni nnci ih(, Mtl)act (,n iho financrai sra rctrents.

lhc efirct on adoption of ind AS 113 rs erpecied to be insignit:icant".
"f'hc, financial statemcnts wrtrr'approve.l for issue lry the, Board of Direclors on 27-05-2022
'l'he figrrres oI thc prcvious year's have beerr r!,groupud or recjassifietl wher(.ver necessa to make lhem

n-^.-r,tt" !4
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INDEIJENDENI' AUDITOR'S REPOITT

Itey Audit N{;rtters

l(ey a.rclit rlaLters are those t:rattels that ir orr r pr:ofessioiral judgment r,vere oi mostisnif icance ir-r our ar_rclit of the financiai statements of the current per:iod. Tirese matters r,veil cl d rcssed in thc context of our auciit of the fir-ranci al statements as a rvhole anci in formingor-tr opirrion thereon ancl we clo not provicje a separat'e opinion on thesc. matters No suchnraltels u'ere identjfiecl ciuring the course of our audit.

Io the N{e'nrbers of Integratect Flitech Limitecl

Ile1"ro.t o. the Audit of trre Co,soridatect Frirancial statements

0pinion

lve hat'e aLrclited the acconrpanying Consoliciatecl financial statements of integratecl IlitechLjr,iteLl ("the Cor:rpa.v") wl-rich comprise the Bala.ce sheet as at March 31,t,2022 ar-rci thestafet,e:rl of P,ofit atrd L.ss and tlre cash flor,r,s statemer-rt for the year tl-rcn 
",rc-iecl 

anci.otesto the fir-rancial statements i,ch-rcling a surnnrlary of significant accounturg pollcies. In ouropir-riou and to the best of our iuforrnation ancl accorcling to the explanations glven to us theaioresaicl fi,a.cial state,rents give the infor:mation required by ,il;.;r, ,n" mamrer soreq,irecl a,d give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generallyacceptecl in India of their state of affairs of the Company as at Marcll Bl,,t,2o22,ancl 1oss anctits r'irslr I'lon,s fol lhe year then enclecl.

L',asis for Opinion

we conciuctec'l our aLidit ir-r accordance with the standards on Aucliting (sAs) specified uncier:icctio,l 14il(10) of the con:panies act 2013, our respo,sibilities u,cier those starrciards;irelurlh.r desc.rtiecl j^ the Atrcljtor's Responsibiljtic.s for the Audit of the Fi'anciar statemenrssectiot'r of out' report' we at'e i.clepe^tlent of thr' Co^rpr,v in accordarrce lrzitrr thc code ofIlthics isstred b1' ICAI attcl t'e ha'e fuitiueci oirr other: ethical responsiLrillies r1r accord.r.lcL,t'ith the pror'risi.ns ol'the c.,r1>anics Act 2013. we believe tlrat the audit evidenc., rtre harzeoblai^.:d is sr,ri'ficienr a.cl approprierte to pr.vide a basis for onr opinior.r"

S

l.i

;:
i\i

, "ai*
{}
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Respo.sibilities of Management and Those Charged rvitrr Governance for the Financiai
Statements

'['he Compatlv's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparatiorr ald preseltation of these
filranciaI stettements in term of the requiremerrts of the Companies Act 2013 that give a true
and fair vielv of the financiai position, financial performance and cash flows of the Compa,yin accordance with the accountir"rg principles generally accepted in rnaiu inciuclir-rg the
Accounting standarcls specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board ofDirectors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of aclequate accounting recorcls
in accorclance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarciing the assets of the Cornpany a,dfor preventing and detecting frauds arLcl other irregularities; seJection and application ofappropriate accountilrg policies: rnaking judgments anct estimates that are reasonablc a.dpl'udent and the design implementation antl maintenarrce of adequate internal financial
cotrtrois tl-rat r.vere operating effectivellz for ensuring accuracy anci completeness of the
accountitrg records relet'ant to tire preparation anci presentation of the financial statements
that give a trlte and faii vier'v ancl are free from mater:ial misstatenrent w,hether ciue to fraud
or error lvhich have been usecl for the purpose of preparatron of the fina^cial statenrents bvthe Directors of the Company as aforesaicl J

In preparing the financial shitemcnts the respcctive Board of Directors of the companies areresponsible for assessing the ability of the Cornpany to continue as a going concern disclosing
as applicable matters related to going corcern anci using the going concem basis of accou.tingunless managernent either i,tends to liquiclate the Coripany or to cease operatio,s or has norealistic aitemative but to cto so.

Tltc 
't'spe'ctjve 

Board of Directors of the companies incrucred in tl-re compa^y is responsible
1'or overseeing the financiar reporting process of the Corapany.

A,ciitor's ltesponsibiiities for the Auctit of the Financial statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assural-rce about whether the financiai stateme,ts as awhole are free from materiai misstatement whether due to fr:aucl or er or ancl to issrrr: aneuclitor's retport tl-rat includes ou opinion. Ileason.rble as:rLrrance is a high level of assurance
br'rf is not it guarantee that an atrdit conductec{ jn accor.dance r,r,ith sAS lVill ill,oiays detect antateriirl nrisstatetnent vvhen it exists. Ivlisstatc,r-nepfs ca, arise from lralrci or c.rro. an. arecousiderecl material if indi.,.iduall1, 61 in the aggregate the1, 66u1,i reasonably be expecteci toinfluence the economic clecisions of users taken on the basis of these financiai statements.

Iteport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required bv section 143(3) of trre Act we report to tJre extent appJicable that:
(a)\,Ve ha ve songlr t ancd obtained all the infonna tion and erplanahons rr.lrich to tlrc
l.:norviedEle alrC beliel'\,vere necessarv for. the {}

Tal

statentents
purposcs of our ar-rdit of the

oLlt'
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ib) In oulr ol-'rinion propel books of accounl as requireel by i1\, relating to preparatjon of the
aloresaid firrar-rcial statements have been kept so fal as iL appears from our examinatio,n of
tho-se books anci the reports of the oilrer auditors.

(c-) Tl-re Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Casli Florn, Stateme.t cleajt
rvith bY this RePort are in agreenrent rt rth the relevant books of accorrnt marntained for tl*:
pLlrpose of preparation.of the finarrcial statements.

(d) in our opiuion the aforesaid financial statements comply lvith the Accountir-rg Standards
speciiied under Section 133 of the,,\ct.

(c) on the basis of the u'ritten t'epresentations received from the clirectors of the Coinpanv as
or-r 'jl st Malch 2022 taken on recorci by the Board of Directors of the Cornpany none of the
clir"'ctors of the companies are disqualifiecl as on 31st lVlarch 2022 frombeing appointed as a
clir:ector in 'terms of Sectior.r 164 (Z)of the Act.

({) With respect to the adeqr-racy of internal financial controls over financiai reporting of the
Grclup aud the ope'raling effectiveness of suclr controls refer to our separate report in
r\ n lt tlt u r('

(8) with respect to the other matters to be inclucled in the Auciitor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of tire Companies (Audit and Audjtor's) Rules 2014 in our opinion ancl to the best of
our i.formatio. anci according to the explanations grven to us:

i) T'lrere were rlo pending iitigations which r,tior-rlcl Irlpsgi the filancial positio,.

ii)The company dict not have anv rnatbrial foreseeable losses on long term contr;rcts)
irrcluclinq clerii,a tive contracts.

lii) Thert'lvlrere no anlounts required to be transfe-r:recl to the lnvestor E,ducation anci
Irrotectjon Irund b1z 1'he Company.

For A John Moris & Co.,

Accountants,

: 007220 S

['lact:: C-]..r:nn.ri

Datc: ?.7-0:,-2022

. Sebastin

Ira r hr ct'

Nf,No. 21S962

UDIN : 2221 6962A.TTUEI9Z89

No 5' Lakshmicuram 1st street. Deivasigamani Road( Near ftdusicAcademy), Royapettah, chennai- 600 014.Tel :+91-44-281160a3-4;766703493; F;;, a44'-zall r7r2'r-mari . info@ajohnmoris.iom, website. www.a.johnrnorjs.i;on-i
Branches : Ahmedabad/ Bengaluru/ Bhubaneswarl chhattisgarhl coimbatorel Guntur/ Hyderabad/Kochi/ Kolkata/ Kumbakonaml Lircknowl Madurai/ Mumb-ai/ Nagercoil/ Nagpur/ New Delhil Ranchil surailThirttw:nanfhnnllr:ml rhriecrrrl rirrrnalrrali/ 'Tirrrntllrvlrirrrnnirrl rrinhrr/Yrrtirnrin :nd vicrlrh:natn:m
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1' (a) The Company lras majntained proper records showing ftil] particulars inciuding
qnantitative details arrd sit,atior-r of its fixed assets.

(b) ,\s explarned to us fixc.d assets are phlzslgllly verified by the management at reasonable
tntelvals l^'hich j:r our opirricln is reasonable looking to the size of the Company and the nature
of jts brisiness. No material clisci:epancies were noticecl on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
exatnrination of the'records of the Company the Cornpany cloes holcl title cieecls of immoyabie
P,'()Pel'tics.

2' -ll-rt: cornpanv is pro','iciitrg a sen,ice ancl hence provision reiaiing to inyentor' is rrot
appUceblc.

'3' Ar:cording to the i:rformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
exarni'n'rtion of the books of account it was observed that tlie Company has not granted Loa,s
to corporate listed in the register maintainecl under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

4' ltr our opinion anci accorcling to the ir-rforrnation and explanations given to us the Coi.pany
has coilp)ied rvith the provisions of sect'ion 185 and i86 of the Act r,vith respect to t6e
il-tvcstments m;rCe. The company has not gr;rnterJ any loans to its clirectors.

5' During the year the Company has not accepted any deposits frorn non-members. As such
the compliance with the directives issuect by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act 2013 and lules framecl there under are not applicabie.

6' As per infolnration & explanatiotr given bv the n'ranagement maintenance of cosl recorcls
has trot bet'n prcscribecl by ihc Cerrtral Co'u,eilment uncler subsection (1) of sectiorrl4g of th.e
Companirs gct zi[3 for anv of tire actirzities of trre Comp:rn1,.

7' (a) Accordi.g to the records the: Cornpany has been generally regular in depositing r,vith
appropriaLe authorities undisputecl statutory dues inclucling Goods and Service Tax a.d other
a1:plicable statutor;z clures cluring tire year.

(b) Accord

respert of

Cisprr tes.

ing to the inforrnation anci expla,atio^s given to us rhere is no ,rnounts payable in
inco*e .ax and service tax r,rririch harre .ot been deposited rrt of any

i+

ql

i
(l
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(c) Accordine to the infortnatiou and explaneitions given to us no amount is required to be
tratrsfcrred to irrvestor educartion ancl protection fund jn accorclance with the relevalt
1:rovisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there under has been
tr;ri-rsferred to such fund r,vithin time.

'!J' '{ccordirrg to the recorcls, there are no transactions recorclecl in the books of accor:nt tl-rat
hat'e beetr srtrrendered or cljsclosecl as income cluring the year in the tax assessrnerrts ulcier
tlre Incorrre Tax Act, l9G1 (49 of 1961).

9' Ilasecl on our audit procedures anci on the information and explanations given by the
management ure ate of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dr-res
to a financial instihrtion barrk or debenture holclers.

10' The Company did irot raise at'ry lnoney by way cf initial pub{ic offer or ftirthelpub)ic offer
(irrclLrdinq debf instruments). Tertn loans were obtainecl by tJre Comparry ancl the same rtas
iipplied for: the purpose it rvas raised for.

I l' Acct.I:ding to the information and explanations given to us no material fi.aud by the
Company or on the Cornpany by its officers or employees has been noticed or reportccJ during
the course of our audit.

i2"rhe Companf is not.r chjt fund or a Nidhi /mutual benefit tunc,l/society. Accor.dingly rhis
palagraph :f the Order: is not app)icabie.

l3' At:cording to the informatiotr anc explanations given to us and basecl on our examination
of the records of thc Companv transactior-rs r,viih the relatecl parties are incompliance with
sectiotrs 'Ji7 and 188 of the Act wirere applicable and cletails of such transactions have beel
clisclosecl in the financialstatements as required by applicable accounting staldards.

14' l}e conlpanv is tlot manci.rtorily reqrrirecl to appoirt an internai auclitor (uncier Scc 13g
reacl nzrth Rr-rle l3), hence this paragraplr of thc. orcier is not appLicable.

15' Accorc{irrg to the irtformation and explanations given to us ancl basecl on our exarnination
of tlie I'L'(--ords of the Cornpany the Company, has not c,ntered into any non-cash transacLions
its directors,

16'Accolding to the inforttration and explanations given to us and based on our examination
ol' tlre rc.:ords ol' tht,contpan).,

a) the cofilp'ln)1 is not required to be registered uncler: section 45-IA of the Rese^,e Bank crf
inclia Act 1934,

b) lhe compan)/ has 
'ot 

conclr,rcted a^y Non-Ba.king Fina^cial or.Housing
r'r'itho,t a'alid certificate of Registration (CoR) frorn the Reserve Bank o
Resen e Bank of India Act, 1934;

f cr
s
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c) ihe compal:]y is not a Core Investment Companl, (CIC) as clefined in the regulatrons made
by the Reserye Bank of India"

17. According to the records, the company has incur:reci a cash loss of Ils. 7,85.750.36 during
the current financialyear but has not incu rrecl ;rny cash loss during the inrrnecliatell, preceding
financiaIyc.ar.

"l8. 
There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

19' On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, information and explanations given to ns anci on
the basis of our exarrination of the books of account, no rnaterial uncertaintv exists as on the
date of the.ruditrepot't and tlre colnpanl,- is'capable of nieeting its liabilities existing at thi:
date of balanc6 slreet as and when they fall clue rvithin a per:iod of ole 1,ear from tl-ie balarrce
sllct:l tl.rtc.

20' fhe conlpan)' cloes not fall under the category of companies to r,vhich CSI{ obliga.tiols
aPPly as specified in Schedr-rle VIi under Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 an6 hence this
paiagraph of the order is not applicable.

21' fJ-rer:e Jral'e ]:een no qualifications or aclverse remarks in the Companies (Audi tor,s Report)
orcier (cARo) reports of the Consolidateci Finarlcial statement.

For A John Moris & Co.,

Accountants,

FRN: 007220 S

Place: Clhennai

D.ite: 27-05-2022

J. Sebastin

Parhrer

M.No,: 2'18962

UDIN : 2221.89 62 AITUEI92Se
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Wt' haVe audited the intertral financial contlols over financial reporting of lvlis. Irrtegrated
l{itech l'irrrited ("the Company") as of 3 tst N'Iarch 2022 inconjunction w.ith our auctit of the
fi^a,cial statenrenls of the C.mpany for the year enclecl on that date.

lVIanagen'rent's Responsibility for I,ternar Financiar Co*trols

1he Compan)'/'s mallagement is responsible for establishing ancl maintainilg internal financial
controls based on the jnternal control over financial refortirlg criteria established by the
Company considerfurg tire essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Char:tered Accountants of India (ICAD. These responsibilities include the design
irnplerncntation emd maitrtenance of adequate internal financial controls ilrat r,t.ere operating
effectirrely for ensuring the orderly arrd efficient conc'luct of its business i^clucli,g adhere.ce
to colnparry's policies the safeguarcling of its assets the prevention ancl cletc.ction r:f frauds ancL
crrors the accttracy a.]-rcl completeness of the accounting records ancl the tirrrely preparatio, of
.erliable fi^a,ci;rl informatr'o,.. as re-quirecr under trrc. CJnrpanies Act 2013.

Au ditors' Responsibility

c)trr rcspotrsibilitv is t'o express an opinion on the Corrrpauy's internal financial controls over
l'iriancial reporting basecl on our auclit.

lve condricted our auclit in accordance with the cuidance Note on Ar-rdit of Internal Financial
Co'rtrols oricr Finarrcial Repolting (ttre "Gujclance Note") and the Stanclarcls on A,clitingjssuecl by ]CAI and clebmect to be prescribed uncler sectjon 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013
to tl'e exterrt applicable to an auciit of intemal financial controls both applicable to a. ar-rdit o{
Internal Finirnci.,rl controls ancl both issuecl by the Institr-rte of Charterecl Accountants of I'dia.'fliose starndards rir'd the cuiclance Note require that rve cornply r,r,ith ethicai r.equirernents
n,c1 prla. ;urd perfol:m the audit t. obtain reaso,able assurance about rvhether acleqr-rate
irrternal financial conirois over f-inancial reportirg was established and rnai-ietaineci and if such
controls operated effectively in ajl maLerial r:espects.

Our arrdit inrrolves perfouling procedurr:s to'obtain auclit evidence about the
internal financial controls systen. over financial reporting and their operating

Deivasigamani Road{ Near firlusic Acade rny), Royapettah. Ch
Fax 044-2811 r/ rl L-matl - 

I nfo@ajohn moris. com, Website : www.ajohnmoris. com
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Or]i aucljt o[ internai finarrrciai i--ontrols over financial reporting inclucleci obtaining an
understanding of intemal finar:rcial controls over fjnanciai.reporting assessing the risk that a
matc'rial r'r'eakness exists and testing ancl evaluating the clesign anci operating

EffectiVeness'o{intemai control basecl on the assessecl risi<. The procedures seiectecl clepenrJ
on the auiljtor's juclgment including the assessment of tire risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements lvhether due to fraud or e1.ror.

\{/e believe t}rat the audit eviclence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opiniou on the Company's internal financiai controis srrstern over
iinanciaI reporting.

Meaning of Internal F'inancial Controls cver Financial lteporting

'A conlpany's internal 'financial control over financial reporting is a process designecl to
pror;ide reasonable assurarlce regarrling the reliability of financial reporting ancl the
preparatioir of financial statements for externai purposes in accordance lvith generaill,
icccplcc accountitlg principles. A companv's intemal finalrciai controi over. financi.rj
reporting includes those policies anci proceciures that

j' Pertain to tire maintenance of lecorcts tl^rat in reasonable detail accurately aircl fairiy reflect
the t,ansactio'ns and crispositions of the asset.s of the company;

ii" 'rovicle reasonable assurance that transaclions are recorclecl as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principlcs and that receipts and expenditr-rles of the companv are being rnacle 6nly in
accordance r'r'jtit atrthorizations of managernent ancl directors of the company; and

iii' Provide reasor'able assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizeci
acrlirisition use or disposition of the company's assets that coulci have a rnateriaj cffect on the
fin;r nc i ai statemrlnts.

Intrere:1t Limitations of Internal Irinancral Controls over Financial Reporting

Ile':attse ol'tLre inhel:ent I-imitations of Irrternal Finai-rcial Controls over Firrancial Reporting
irrcluding the possibilitl, oi coiiusion or improper maltagelnent override of controls maleriai
misstatentetnts due to er.ror or frarrd may occur and not be detected. Also plojections of any
er,;rluation of il-re intemal financial controls over financial reporting to fuhrre periocls are
subjecf to tire risk that the mternal fiuancial control over financial reporting n1a
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inadequatc becar:se of 
.changes 

in conclitions or that the degrc-e of cor.-rpliance
clr procerlures niay deterioratc
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ffi.3wffiffi ffiffiffifis & qffi.*
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

iir ot-ir opiniotr fire Company has ir-r ail material r:espects an adequate internal firanciai controjs
.s','.'itelll 0vr:r financial reporting and such interrral finarrcial controls over financial reporting
\{ere operating effectivel}z as at 31st March 2022 trased on the internai control over financial
reportinr criterra established b), tl-r" Cornpany consiclering the essential components of
internal control stated tn the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cver
I'inancial lR.eporting issued by the lnstitute of Charterecl Accor-urtants of India.

For A John fuIoris & Co.,

Accountants,

FRN: 007220 S

l'lace: Cherurai

L'talc: 2.7-05-20?-2

J. Sebastin

Parhrer
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3lst March, 2022

CORPORATE INTORI\{ATION:
Integrateci I-Iightech Limited is a Public limited company b), shares having its registerecl office

150/11S,CISONS COMPLEX3RD FLOOR,MONTIETH ROAD, EGMORE, CI-{ENNAI-8 Chennai TN
IN, bearing CIN L72300TN1993PI-C024583" The company is listed in Bornbay Stock Exchange. The

irusiness activity of the company is Softu,are Development Services.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING I'OLICIES

L. Ilasis of Preparation of Financial Staternents:

fhe accourrting policies are appliecl consistentll, to all the periods preserrted in the financial statements. All
assets ancl liabilities have been classified as chrrent or non current as per the Company's normal operating

cycle and otl.rer criteria set out in the Schedule III to tl"re Companies Act, 2013.
'l'lre financial statements are presentecl in IN& the functional currency of the Company. Rounding
ant(lttnts r\ll anrounts disclosed in tire financial statements and notes have been rouncled off to the nearest

lal<hs as per the requirement of schedr.rle III, unless otherwise statecl.

2. Use of [stimates and judgments:

The preparation of tl-re financial statements reqr.rires the Management to make, judgments, estimates
assumptions that affect the reported amorlnts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent Iiabilities as

the date of the financial staternents and the reportecl amcxrnts of revenue ancl expenses during the
period' The recognition, measuremenf classification or disclosure of 

'an item or information in the
statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates ancl jr,rdgements useci ir-r the preparation ot
financial statements are continuously evaluatecl by tire management and are based on historicai
anC various other assumptions and factors (inclucling expectations of future events) that the
believes to be reasouabie uncler the existing circumstances. Actual results rnay cliffer from those estimates.
l\n1z lgvi5i,r^ to accounting estimates is recogniseci prospectively it1 cunent ancl fr-rture periods.

Critical accounting judgernents and key source of estimation trncertainty
The Comparly is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amorult
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. T'he estimates anii associated

assumptiorrs are based cln historical experience ancl other factors that are consiclerecl to be relevant.'t'he
estimates ancl unclerltrir"rg assr,rmptions are rer,,ieweci on an on-going basis.

. (a) Estimation <.lf current tax expenses ancl payable - Reier note no. - 14

3. I'roperty, plant and equiprnent (PlrE)

Pro;lertv, plarrt and equipment is stated at acquisitiou cost net ot accumulated ciepreciation ancl

impairment losses, if any.

l"ire cost of an item of property, iand and equipment comprises its purchase price, ir.rclr"rding import clu

and non-refundable purchase taxes, after ciecllrcting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
costs of'bringing the asset to its w-orking conditicln for its intenderl use and estirnated costs of
anci removtlng the itern and restoring the item and restoring the site on r,vlrich it is locateci.

Cains ancl losses otr d.isposais are rletern'rined by comparing proceeds q,itir carr.l,ing amouirt. Ihese
included in the Statement of profit and Loss.

a
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4. Financial Instruments:

Financial assets

Iritiancial assets are recoguised rvhen the Company becomes a partv to the cotrtractual prot,isions ot
instruments.

I)erecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has

retairreci the risl<s and revvarcis of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained slrbstantially all
the risks aucl lewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Companv continues to recognise

the tlansferrecl asset to the extent of the compa.ny's continuing involvemer-rt.

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated tiability. The transferreci asset and, the
liability'are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Cornpany has retained.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractuai provisions of the
instrttments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of trarrsactiol costs for all financial
Iiabilities r-rot carried at fair value through profit or loss"

The Company's financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

Financial lialrilities neasured at amortised cost are subsequently measureci at using EII{ method, Financiai
liabilities carried at fair,value thror.rgh profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value
recogniseci in tl.re Statement of profit and Loss.

' Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Conrpany are tlrose contra cts that requires payment to be
or to reirnburse the holder for a Ioss it rncurs because the specified de,btors fails to make payment when
1n accordance rvith the tern-r of a debt instrurnent. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as
liability at fair
guarantee.

De-recognition

vaiue, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 1SSUanCe of the

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is clischarged or
expiles. When an existing financial liability is replacecl by another from the same lender on

cancelled

c'lifferent ternts, or the terms of an existing Iiability are substantially modified, such an exchange
modificatior-r is treated as the derecognition of the original tiability ancl the recognition of a nerv liability. 'fhe

clifference ir"r the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the staternent of profit or ioss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Firrancial assets and firrancial liabilities are offset ancl the net amount is reportecl in the Balance Sheet if
is a currentiy.enforceable iegal right to offset the recognised amounts ancl there is an intention to settle on
net basis. to realise the assets aud settle the liabilities sirnuitaneously

i,**t"iil*i"'1't
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5. Fair \/alue l4easrrrernent
'l'lte Cornpany llleasttres firrancial itrstrnrnerrts, such irs, clerivatives, investlnents at fair vallre at each b

sireet ciate. Irair value is the price that would be receirreci to sell an asset or paicl to transfer a iiability in
or:derlv transaction betrveerr rrarket par-ticipants at tl're measurement clate. The fair rralue measLlrernetlt

Lrased or-r the presumption that the transaction to sell tire asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

(a) in the orincipal nrarket for the asset or liability, or

(b) In tire abseuce of a principal rnarket, in the most advantageous market for the as$et or liability

Ali assets anci iiabilities for rvl.rich fair value is nreasured clr disciosecl in the financial statemcnts arc

categoriseci withrn the fail value lrier:archy, describeci as foilon,s, basecl on the ior,vest level input that is
sisnific.rnt to the fair r,altre m.easut.errrent as a r,vho[e:

(i) Level i - Quoted (unadjr.rsted) rnarket prices in active rnarkets for identical assets or liabilities
(ii) t,evel 2 -- \zaluatiorr techrriqr"res for which the lowest ievel input tl'rat is significant to the fair
nreaslrrernent is elirectiv ot' inelirectllr obsert,able

(iii) i.evei 3 -'Valuation technicitres for r,r,hiclr the lor.vest level lnput that is significant to the farr.

lncasu rernent is nnolrservable

For assets ancl liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

deterlnines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

(based on the lorvest level input tl-rat is significant to the fair rralne measurement as a ivhole) at the end

each repor:ting peliod.

For the purPose of fair valr-re c{isclosures, the Cornpany has cleterrninecl classes of assets anci liabilities on
basis of the naturre, characteristics ancl risks of the asset or liability and the ievel of the fair value hierarchy
explained above

6. Inventory

inYentories are vahied at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a weightect a

basis.

?r. Cash and Cash Equivalentst

Cash and Casir eqr.rivalerrts inciude casir alld Cheque irr hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks

irnci other short-terryr highly liquid investments tirat ale reaclily convertible to known amounts of casir &
which are strb.iect to an insignificant risk of charrges in valne where originai maturity is three months or less^

8. Foreign Currency Transactions: NIL

9. Revenue Recognition:

Rendering of Serviccs

it]cclme lronr services renc'lered is recognlsed trased on invoices raiseci for service pr<;vided ou an accr

basis.

Rcventte is rncasttred at fair valure of the consideration received or receivable, after decluction of
discounts, any taxes or duties collectecl on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as

& Service taxe (GST) and service tax.

In terest

Revenue is recognised on a time proportitin basis taking irrto accorint the amourrrt or-rtstanding arlcl the

hrl-crest ratc applicable and based on methocl.

q
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Dividend

Divi.iend Jncome is recclgnized lvl'ren right to receive the same is established.

10. Employee Benefits;

F.rnplovee iJeenfits: - The Company doesnot falJs rvith in the applicability of Employee Beneflt plans.

11, Taxes on Income:

Ittcome tax ct>nrprises cLllrellt and deferlect tax, Income tax expense ls recognizeci in the statement of profi
and loss excePt to the extent it r:eltrtes to itenrs directlr.. recognizecl in eqr"rity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current.tax is baseci on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit ciue
temporary differences betrveen accounting and tax treatments, anct clue to iterls that are never taxable or
ciedttctilrle. Tax provisiotls are included in current ljabilities. Interest and penarlties on tax iiabilities

Prrovided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax assets ancl liabilities (g1 a vear on
basis) u'her:e it has a legally errforceable right and rvhere it intenc{s to settie sr.rch assets and liabilities on a net
basis or to realise the assets arrd liabilities on net basis.

l)eferred income tax is recognized using the baiance sheet approach. Deferrerl income tax assets

liabilities are recognized for dedtrctible and taxable ternporary ciifferences arising between the tax base
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. Deferrecl income tax asset
recognizecl to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit rvill be availabie against rvhich the deductible
tetnl:roran' clifferences, and the carry forn,arci of r"rnusecl tax creclits aircl unrrsecl tax iosse.s can bc utilizerl.
Defe[ed tax.rssets are llot recoglrised n,here it is nrore likely than not that the assets rvill not be realisecj irr
the f r-r tlr re.

I'he calrying amoltnt of deferrecl income tax assets is revierved at each reporting clate ancl reciucecl to
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wili be available to allow all or part of
deferrecl inco-me tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is lealizeci or the liability is settlecl, based on
rates (and tax laws) tirat harre been enacted or substantivelrr enactecl at the reporting date.

tax

tax

Deferrecl tiix itetrrs are recognisecl iu correiation to the underlying transactir:n either in OCI or ciirectly in
equity.

Minimttm Altemative 1'ax ('MAT') creclit is recognised as ar1 asset only ra4'ren and to the exter-rt there
convincing evidence that the Company wiil pay norrnal income-tax during the specified period"
Ci>mpany revlews the same at each balance sireet date and wrl tes do w11 the carrving arnount of MAT credi
entitlement tcr the extent there ts 11() longer corlvillclng evidence to the effect tha Conrpanl, rvill Pa)'
ir-tcclr.tte-tirx tl u rin tire

t'
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12. Borror.r,ing Cost:

Geueral' and specific borrclwing costs that are ciirectly attributable to the acqliisition, construction
pr:odrrction clf qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of Cost of that assets, cturing the periocl till a1l

activities llecessary to prepare the Qr"ralifying assets for its intenclecl use or sale are compiete ciuring the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its inter-rdeci use or sale.

assets at:e arssets thtrt necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their inteldecl nse or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense irr the periocl in which they are incurred

L3.Earnings Per Sharel

llasic earnings per shares are caiculated by divicting the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributa
trl eqtrity shareholders by the weightecl average number oi eqr-rity shares oLrtstanciini; during the period
the purp)ose of ci.rlctrlatir-rg diluted earnings per slrale, the net 1:rofit or lclss lor.the pet.iocl attribr-rtable tr> tire
equitl' shareholders and the rveighted average nurrber of sirares outstanciing ch-rring tl-re period is adjustecl
fol the effects of all rlilutive potential etlnity shares.

14. Leases:

Where the Company is Lessee

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains sr.rbstantiaily all the risks ancl benefits of ow4ership of tire
item, are classified d5 operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized AS an exPerlse 1it

Statement oi Profit and Loss on

I{ihere the Company is Lessor

Leases in rvirich the Cornpany

asset are classified as operatir"rg

accrrral basis d5 Per the terms of agrec.'tnents entered with the counter par:ties.

does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included tn property, plant

ecluiprnent. Tl're Company recognizes lease rentals from the property leased ont, on accrual basis AS per
terms of agreements entered wt tl-r the counter parties. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as
expense in tire Statement of profit anci Loss.

L5, Provisions, Conti.gent Lialrilities and Co'rtingent Assets:

A rrlovision is recognised il as a result of a past event, tlre 8rollP has a present legal or constnr ctiVC

oblig;ation that can be estimertecl

requiled trt settie the obligation.

reliably antl 1S probable that ou tflorv of econotnic benefits will

Provisions for onerolls contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived b1' the
fror.n a contract are lolver than the unavoidable costs of meeting the futu re obligations urnder the contract.

A disclosure ior contingeni liabilities 1S made where there IS a possible obligation a present obligation
may probabl v not require an outflorv of resoLlrces or an o,bligation for rtrhi ch the fr"rture outcome cannot be
ascertainecl \'r'ith reastlnable certainty. When there is tr possible or a present obiigation rvhere the likelihoocl
of <lutfldw of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is macie. .

assets are neither nor disclosed in financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated financial staternents for the year endecl 31st NrIarch,2022

2 inl,cstnlcnts

As at 3Lst Nlarch,2022

1ls.

2{4.S5

As at 3Lst ltlarch, 2022

I{s.

63.15
irr Subsitiialres

Total 63.15

As it 3lst rci), :ii2.L

lls.

63.15

As nt 31.st l\{arcir, 2021

r(s^

lf t.!,

laL-/

3 'I'rade Receivables

i tr., . .tt,... rrrtts:r:lr':t,ri ilr,(rci

.1 (ash&c;rsh

Particulars

0.

Total

As at 3Lst N,Iarch, 2022

Ils.

53.4i

53.58

'lDSl 
ltccci"'abii:

r\dvar rr:o to supplicr.s

As at 31st lr,larch, 2022

Its.

34.54

0.03

I'articulars

Total

I-ra rrd

-tl.! +:sr:r:y!!b-ho*;
i ) i rr cu rrcnt accounts

34.57

As at 31st l\,Iarch- 2(lf 1

Rs.

34.5 r

r).i(

As at 31st

.l"i.6i

202'l

iid

55.4i.

trls.

5 Short'[erur Loans ancl Aclvances

il!,**s*l-t&

t'

Particulars

241.95

Particulars
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.A uthorisLai:

ililri\ 5irarLi i)l l{s 1a) c,}(1!

!ssue11, Subscr!beri and l,ai11 rrpr

I Siur.s oi i.is i0cnch

5.1 Re.on.iliation ruttb!r oi shares

4.2 I erms.: rigltts nttnclled to Equity Shires:

.riro!nir. l i,r (iistriL,uli<rr rtiji be irr proP([ticn lo lhc nur)ber ci e(lLl
i.l Details slrarr,s lrelil eacD

7 lieserves

lf.Iotes to Consolirlatcrl finaucial statenreilts tor the ycar en.ied 31$f Nrarcir, 2022

To tal

aDd

more thail shnres in tlrc

I tii,,i.,1rr)r or liqiljriJtron ot iiri C(rnprry,.tne holiid5 i)t (:(lLIil\ siutes will ire entitiod to r(,cilive dnr ol the rtrrnining issels ol thc C()nlpai1),, ditcr riistribLliiotl oi ill prcter.,Itj,ljlv sirrrcs i1elL1 b,y Ilic Sharolroltlers.

9Dc 'l-a\

As at 31st

I(s.

Rs.

A5 !r 31st Nralcjr,202l

l0 l ladc

1t l erm

As al 31st tr,larch, 3021

Rs.

5t.07

B 59.0'

at

ts.ixlci lu rr,

i{dtaltreai

47.S:,r

t7.83

(l

As at 31sf i\larch,2022 As it 31st l\,tarch,2021

Its.

6.,i0 5 ji{-,

6.{0

il*nnxi"1{{{
I

As at 31st iv.luch, 2022 As rt 31st i\l,rrch, 1.021

lls.

l.0lr0.4b

i,000.46

i.000.16

1,000..16

1,000.46 1,000.4

Ailo!nl

as at 31st l,lnich, 2020

as al 3lst

/ (i.e!s)i C:hrrlecs (iurin{ lhe yenr

/ 1l essj: Cirnrlgcs dlrfilrg th.: vr.rr

is it 31st iUar.h, i02t

Paid
Autouni

Ils.Bilailcc as at 3ts{ i\,1ar.h,2020

,'(l..css): (,-h.Irges durJrrg lhc- year

Balan(c as at 3lsf l! arclr,Z021

/ (i €ssl: Changes dlu ing the year

Rs.10 eachshrre rvilh
NunrL:er of fuliy paid

equity shales 'lo HoirJrng

s,55,800 5.5ri

5,03,513 .5.Cir

.46 nt 31sl \larch, 2022

Rs.lfu,t( tir l\liar.,rid Sr\rnil enietrprises

l.),rei to a)tlr(,rs

'I otal

As nl As at 31st ivfr.clr,

Rs.i-,ct.:rrc(i I r\ L.irDilities
_ orl,\.olr11i oi ricI,r!,ai-.ttot.

As at31st

As at 31st 1022 Nlath,2021

Rs. Rs.Othcr F;r-1i[]g,;

Total

l2 Provrsions

lis.

t

0.3'l

provtSrons

Particulars

iirrrn t)lirers

Ierti.ulirs

Particlrla$

31st
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For the year

ended March

3'1.,2022

Rs.

9.7s
Saiaries, u,ages and bonr:s

Total 9.75

For the year

ended March

31,2022

Rs,

6.18
Rent Receirred

Total 6.18

For the year

ended March

31,2022

3.37
ie o1 Services

Total

For the year

ended March

31,,2A22

Its.

3.38
l-)epreciatior.r of propertr,, piarrt ancl equipment (Refer note 2)

Total 3.38

For the year

ended March

31,2022

Rs.
lien t

l-isting l:ees

Professional/Agency fees & Other expenses

Ad vertisement expenses

Pavment to Auditors -,{udit fees

lr,larketing & btisiness promotion expetlses

I']osta geTelephone&Communication

rinting & Statione4u

Other

I ravelling & convevance

Iiepair & maiutenance expenses

Irrtr,re':t & IJauk cliarges
0.01

2.09

i.o 1

0.33

1.15

0.1s

0.12

006

Total t.ot

- ii

, " *o r.1*1" 
'' u

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

1-l llevenue frorn

14 0ther Income

Benefit

16

17 Other Expenses

and arnortisation

For the year ended

March 31^,2021

I{.s.

14.45

I 4..I f

For the year ended

March 31.,202'1

Rs.

4.57

,+.87

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Its.

11. l4

11.14

For the year ended

March 3:l , z1z7

Rs

3.69

3.69

For the year ended

March 3L,2021

Rs.

2.9t)

i.-1l

().:

,j,,i0

1.1:

0.6,

0.4

i).3.

0.5;

rl.0

I

10.03

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

I{s.

Particulars

15
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Particulars
For tire year erlded

Marclr 3'Lst,2022

For the year ended

March 3Lst,2021

Rs. Rs"
'Iax Experrses

Total irrcome tax

Palticulars
For the )/ear ended

March 31st,2022

I:or the ,vear endecl

March 3Lst,2021,

Rs. lls.
(11.24) (5.54)

Profit i(loss) before taxation

[lnacled income tax rate in India

Tax at the enacted incom.: tax rate

Reconciliation line iterns:
-l 

ax crcd it nt:t rt'cop;nisr:d
'fax expense/ (credit)

Notes to Consolidated financial staternents for the year ended 31st March, 2022

L8 lncorne taxes

(a) l'ax expense in the Statelnent of and loss:

A l'econciliation betr,r'een the statutory income tax rate applicabie to the Company and t)rer

(b) ileconciliation of effective tax rate

a'

{r*n**i'14

104



For the year

ended

March 3'1,2A22

Fsr the year ended

March 3'1,2021

tax available for equity shareholders

Weighted average nurnber of equity shares

Nominal valrre of equity sh;rres

PARTICULARS

Profit after

Bttsic and dilutecl Per Share

(17,24,172.36)

1,00,04.600.00

1().00

(0.1 r )

(5,54,230.00)

1,00,04,600.0t)

10.rr{.r

(u.06)

Notes to Consoliclated financial statements for the year encled 31st March, 2022

19 Contingent liabilities & Commitments
'l'he' 

con'rpany cloes rrot harze anlr 66pfjloent liabilities aucl Comrnitements (Including Capitai
Conrnritrnents as on March 37, Z0ZZ (As at March 31, 2021 - Nil).

20 Per share (ln

21 Segment Reporting

'1'he Compan)I's Board of Directors has been identifiecl as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
22 Related party disclosures

There rvere no related Party transactiotr r,vere carried out cluring the year and plevior-rs vear".

Name of related party
'Integrated 

l{itech Singapore pte Ltd
Mr. Sheiklr Abciul Farook

N4r. A. Cer:ald Ebenezer

Integrated Hitech ( America) Corporation
\4r. Itaj Jeba l(ur-nar

Mr. A. Geraid Ebenezer

Position

Sribsidiary Company

Director:

Director

Subsidiary Company

Director

Director

*tr*rnui'14
q
7

rt
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Notes Iiorming Part of Consolidated Financial Statements

].3 Financial instrtrments
'['he fair: valltes of t]re financial assets ancl liabilities are incluclecl at tire arnount at r,,irich the instrument co,id be
excilaneed in a cttrrc'nt transaction betr,r,een rvilline oarties. otirel than in a forced or. lior"ridatio, sale.'l'he following methocls and assumptions rtrere Llsect to estimate the fair val;es:
'l .lrair vaiue of tash and short-term rlel-r65i15, tracle anci other short term receivables, trade pavables, other current
liabilities, shcrrt term loans from banl<s and other financial instilr-rtions approximate tireir carrying amolrnts largell, chre
to short term maturities of these instruments.

2. I;inancial ilrstrtlments u'ith fixed and variable interest rates are evaluatecl by the Companl, baseci on parameters sr"rclr

'I'he 
Con'rpan]/ uses the follorving hierarchy for determining ancl disclosing the fair value of financial instrurnents b'

valuation techniquc:

l..evel 1: cluoted (unactjr.tsted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
l'errel 2: other techniques fol rvhich all inputs rvhich have a significant effect on tire recordecl fair yalue are obser'able
e r thr.r di recth, or: i rrdirectll,.

l,evel 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recordecl fair value that are not basecl or-r

.rbsrrvabie rrrarl<et datl.

'Ihe carryi,g amo*nts and fairval,es of fina.ciar instrun,ents lry categorl,are as for]orvs:
Foi N,Iarch 3L,2022

-l'here 
l'"'ere no significant changes in classification and no significant morrements betr,r,eel the fair value hierarcht,

claisiiications of financial assets arrcl fir.rancial liabilities during the period.

I:i nancial risl< factors
'['lre. Companv's principal financiar riabilities comprise ioans and borror.r,ings, advances and trade and other
The p,rpose .f these fi.a*ciai riabilities is to fi^a.ce tire
ol:er.atio^s' The Conrpary's principal firanciarl assets i.cl,cre
r:quivalents that derive ciirectlv lrorn its oper.ations.

Colrpanl,'s operations and to provide to sr"rpport

(lonsidering ilre size and the operalions of thc Compan\/, it is not exposed to LiqLriclity Risk, lr4arkct liisk and
li s ll.

1oans, trade arrd other receivables, and cash and

Irarticrilars
FVOCI F\/TPL Amortised cost Total fair vaiue Carrying

amount
Rs. Rs. Rs Rs. Its.

63.15

34,57

53.56

63.15

34.57

53.58

63.1s

3,1"57

53.s8

I:rinancial assets

investrnents

I nt,entoly
-I 

rarlc l?.eceivable *s

Cash arrd cash equir.alents

Otlrer firrancia I assets

f'otal Financial assets -151.31
151.31 151.31

Financial liabilities
Borror,r,itrgs

T'r4<1e p;,1,ablgs

f)thels
'I'otal financial. Iiabilities

ilt",triri r*i"14
tr

t
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Notes Fornring l,art of Consoliclated Financial Statements

Capitai risk nranagement

The Cornpany's objectives rviren nlanaging capital are ro :

{i) safcguard their ability to continLre as a Boing conccrn, so that rhey can continue to provide returns for
(ii) maintain an optimal capjtal structure to rcduce the cost of capital

In orcier to maintain or adjust the capitai structure, thc Company nray issue nerv sitares, adjusi thc
' of dividends paid to shareholders eic. The C-orlprany's policl, is io lnaintain a stable and strons

strttctLlre rvith a focus orl total e(lLrity :ro a6 to maintai,r inycstor, creditors anci market conficlencc and

sustain future deveiopment alld grolvlh ol its business.

25 First tinre adoption of Ind AS

The accounting Policics set out jn Note i. havo becn applied in prcuaring the finarrcjal statentenrs irom thc

vear enclcd )v{arch 3'1,2018, lhc mrnparative information preseniecl in thcse financialstatemenis for the

vear errtlerl Nlarch 3i,201z and in lhe preparation of an Lrperring Ind ..\S balance shce.t at /\prii 0.1, 20I6 I

Cornparrl''5 ials st transiiion). ltr preparing its opening Inci AS balance sireet, the Cornpany has ldjusted
the amolrnts rc-ported previousll, ir, 6 ,ron. r, statcments prepared in accordance rvith the accounting

standi:rcis notifietl trnder Companies (Accountins Standards) Itules, 2006 (as amencied) and other relevant
Exenrptions and exceptions availed

A, lnd AS optional exemptions
(i) Deerrred Cost

'Ihc Cornparrv on first timc adopiion of ind r\S, iras ciacted to continue \vith thc carrying vaiue for aii
of its property, piant & cquipnrent and othel intangiblc asscis as recognised in the financial statements

as at the date of tlansition to Ind AS, measured as per the prcvious GAAP and use that as its cieemeri

costs as at the dafe of tra,lsition.
(ii) Designation oI previously recognised financial instrurnents

Paragrirph t)l 9ll of Ind AS 1 01 gives an option to an entity to designate investmenrs in equity
instruments at FVC)CI on the basis of the facts and circumstances al the date of transition to Ind
.A'S.'I'lrc co.rpany has opted t() appiy this exemption for its inveshnent in cquity Investments.

B. Ind AS mandatory eremptions

(i) Estinrates

An i:ntit)1's estimates itr acccrrcJance rvith lnrj i\Ss rt the claie t--[ transitron to lncj ,\S shal] bt,consrsrsnr
H'ith eslimiltes nlacJe for tlre sane date.in ar:cLrrclance rvith pret,ious Lli\r\P (after .]diustmcnls ii) retiect
anr. tl i ilcrnrce in .lccounting pol icies).

lnd AS cstiln,ries as at Aprii 01,2016 are consjstr.nt \\,ith ihe estinlates;rs at lhe same (iatc made rn

confornr itr, u,i th prrevious CAAp,

The Companv nrade cst;ulates for follorving itern in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as

thcsu rverc not rcquircd rrnder prcvious C;\r\P;

- Impairrnent of fin;rncial asscts bascd on expccteci crcdit loss modet.
(ri) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 rcquires all cntity to asscss classificirtion and measurement of financial assets (investsrent

in debt itrstrulneuts) on the basis of the iacts ancl circunlstances that exist at the date of transition to

hrd r\S.

(iii) De-recognition of financial assets and firrancial liabilities

The Cornpanv has elected to appiy cierecognition reqLriretnents ior financiai assets ancl financial
liabilitics in lnrl AS 109 prospectiveil'Ior transactions occurring on or aftcr the d.rte r)t tr.ansition to Ind
AS.

Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

'fhcre rvere no adjustments required to be carried out pursuant to the adoption of the Ind AS by the

Companv. Hence, there are no reconcilialion Iine itmes have been presentcd.
Recent accounting prouncements

lnd AS 115 - Revenue frorn Contracts with Custorners

i.n Marcir 2018, the \'Iinistrv of Corporate Affairs has notified the Comp;rnies (Indian Accounting
stantiards) Arnencied Rules,2018 ("amencied rules"). r\s per the amencled rLrles, Irrci AS 115 

,,Rcvenue

from contracts $'itlr cristomers" strpersedes inci ..\S.l i, "Construction contracts" arrd Inci i\S 1g, ,,Revcnuc,,

Ind AS 1 15 introduces a netv [tatrework of [ive step rrotlel for the anal_vsis of rc.r,cnuc, transactions. fhe
model spccil'its tlrat rcvenue sirould be recosnrsrd rvhcrr (or as) an cntrty transfer control of go6ds or

. serviccs to a custoiner at tltL. alnount to which

the entitv exPccts to be entitlcd. Further the ne!v standarci requires enhanced clisclosures abolri the pature,

amoLlnl, hming and uncertaintv of revenLreant-i cash florvs arising hom tlte entil),'s contracts !vitll
custolncrs. I he nr:l' rcvenu e sra nda rd is applicab le to the company from 1 April 201g.

The Companv is evaluatillS the relluiremerll of the amendrrent and the irnpact on the financialstatenlents.
'l he cf fcct orr adoption of Ind AS l'l S js expected to be insignificant,,.
The financial statements lvere approvccl f<rr issuc by thc Boarcl of Directors on z7-0s-2022
'I'hc figurc's of lhe previous vear's have been rei;rouped or reclassifjed h,hercver necessrr),to make them28

,:t'
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